
   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

MEETING OF THE  
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2014 
 

2:30 P.M. 
 

 WORKSHOP AGENDA 
 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for 
Thursday, November 6, 2014. 
 

2. Evaluations Executive Session:  Chapter 551, Government Code, §551.074 – Personnel 
Matter – The City Council will meet in executive session to discuss the employment, 
evaluation, duties and work plan of the City Attorney, and the Municipal Court Judge.  No final 
action will be taken. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOVEMBER 6, 2014 • Page 1 of 5 
 



 
5:00 P.M. 

 
MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 
2 NORTH MAIN STREET 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 
TEMPLE, TX 

 
TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
1. Invocation  
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
 
II. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITION 
 
3. Arbor Day                  November 12, 2014 

 
III.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting.  
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting.  Please limit comments to 3 
minutes.  No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council.  
 
 
IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion.  If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered 
separately. 
 
4. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate 
 resolutions for each of the following: 
 
 Minutes 

 
(A) October 16, 2014 Special Called and Regular Meeting 
 
 
Contracts, Leases, & Bids 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOVEMBER 6, 2014 • Page 2 of 5 
 



 
(B) 2014-7525-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract with the Greater 
 Temple-Belton Foundation for Animal Care to administer a spay and neuter voucher 
 program for the City of Temple Animal Shelter. 
 
(C) 2014-7526-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract with Valley View 
 Consulting, LLC for Investment Advisory Services. 
 
(D) 2014-7527-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract for 
 the base bid and bid alternates #1-6 with Austin Engineering Company, of Austin, for 
 rehabilitation of the Hickory Lift Station in an amount not to exceed $403,100, as well 
 as, declare an official intent to reimburse the expenditures with the issuance of 2015 
 Utility  Revenue Bonds. 
 
(E) 2014-7528-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an amendment to the 
 professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, for 
 engineering services required for bid, construction phase and onsite representation 
 services for the Outer Loop (Phase 3) from Adams to the channel in an amount not to 
 exceed $96,700. 
 
(F) 2014-7529-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 

agreement with Walker Partners, LLC, of Killeen for engineering services including 
design, surveying, bidding and construction administration required to replace” water 
mains along East Adams Avenue and North 3rd Street in an amount not to exceed 
$175,660; as well as declare an official intent to reimburse the expenditures with the 
issuance of 2015 Utility Revenue Bonds. 

 
(G) 2014-7530-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 

agreement with Clark & Fuller, PLLC, of Temple for professional services required to 
design and survey work for the 2015 Utility Replacement program in an amount not to 
exceed $213,791.59. 

 
(H) 2014-7531-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract amendment to a 
 professional  services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, of Temple 
 (KPA) for services required to provide design, bidding, and right-of-way support services  
 for the Prairie View Road Widening in an amount not to exceed $697,400. 
 
(I) 2014-7532-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Chapter 380 Agreement with 
 Temple Economic Development Corporation (TEDC) for conveyance to TEDC of an 
 approximately 39 acre parcel of City-owned land located off of Range Road. 
 

 (J) 2014-7533-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the following with respect to  
  the procurement of natural gas for the compressed natural gas (CNG) fueling station: 

  1. A renewal to the memorandum of agreement with Choice! Energy  Services of  
   Houston for consulting services related to natural gas procurement; and 
 

2. The City Manager or the Director of Finance to enter into a contract commencing 
January 1, 2015, with the lowest responsible bidder for a period of 12 to 36 
months for the commodity cost of natural gas. 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOVEMBER 6, 2014 • Page 3 of 5 
 



(K) 2014-7534-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing payment of the Consolidated 
 Water  Quality (CWQ) Assessment Fee to the Texas Commission on Environmental 
 Quality (TCEQ) for  operations of Temple’s wastewater treatment plants, in the 
 cumulative amount of $94,722. 
 
Misc. 
 
(L) 2014-7535-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the application for grant 
 funds to Oncor’s City Matching Grant Program, to complete lighting upgrades at the 
 AMCOM hangar building at the Airport in the amount of $23,358 with up to $11,679 
 reimbursed to the City. 
 
(M) 2014-7536-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a grant application to the 
 Texas State Library and Archives Commission, Grants to States Program from the 
 Institute of Museum and Library Services for reimbursement of postage costs 
 associated with the Interlibrary Loan program for an amount up to $7,992. 
 

 (N) 2014-7537-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for 
  fiscal year 2014-2015. 

 
 
Ordinances – Third & Final Reading 
 
(O) 2014-4686: THIRD & FINAL READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing a 

five year franchise agreement with Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a AmeriStat Ambulance for 
non-emergency ambulance transfer services. 

 
V. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
5. 2014-4691: FIRST READING & PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 
 establishing the City’s participation in the Texas Enterprise Zone Program pursuant to Texas 
 Enterprise Zone Act, Chapter 2303, Texas Government Code, providing tax incentives, 
 designating a liaison for communication with interested parties, and nominating Artco-Bell 
 Corporation to the office of the Governor Economic Development & Tourism through the 
 Economic Development Bank as a qualified enterprise project. 
 
6. 2014-4688: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-37: Consider adopting an 
 ordinance to  take action on a rezoning from Urban Estate District (UE) to Single Family-One 
 District (SF-1) on 61.137 +/- acres, being a tract of land in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract 
 No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located at 5105 Charter Oak Drive. 
 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
7. 2014-7538-R: O-FY-15-01 – Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an Appeal of 
 Standards in Section 6.8.of the Unified Development Code for the 1st and 3rd Overlay District 
 related to landscaping, sidewalks, and impervious cover for the expansion of an existing car 
 dealership at 1001 and 1003 South 1st Street. 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOVEMBER 6, 2014 • Page 4 of 5 
 



 
 
The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session whenever permitted by the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
1:30 PM, on Friday, October 31, 2014. 
 

______________________ 
Lacy Borgeson, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 
 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOVEMBER 6, 2014 • Page 5 of 5 
 



   
 

 
 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

11/06/14 
Item #4(A) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary   
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 
 

(A) October 16, 2014 Special Called and Regular Meeting 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve minutes as presented in item description. 
 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
October 16, 2014 Special Called and Regular Meeting (To Be Provided) 
 

 

 

  



sh 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

11/06/14 
Item #4(B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Brynn Myers, Assistant City Manager 
Walter Hetzel, Animal Services Manager 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract with the Greater Temple-
Belton Foundation for Animal Care to administer a spay and neuter voucher program for the City of 
Temple Animal Shelter. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

At its October 27, 2014 meeting, the Animal Services Advisory Board voted to recommend approval 
of the proposed contract. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  Since 2005, the City of Temple Animal Shelter has participated in a spay and 
neuter program administered by the Ida Ollife Foundation. This past year, the Ida Ollife Foundation 
disbanded and a new foundation was established, the Greater Temple-Belton Foundation for Animal 
Care (“Foundation”). 

The Foundation desires to continue the spay and neuter voucher program. 

Under the proposed agreement, the City of Temple will $45 for each adopted animal which has either 
already been spayed or neutered by the Foundation or for which a spay and neuter voucher is 
purchased at the time of adoption and will pass those funds through to the Foundation on a quarterly 
basis. The Foundation will use funds for reasonable and necessary expenses for the purposes of 
administering the spay and neuter Voucher program. The Foundation will enter into a contract with 
one or more qualified veterinarians to perform spay and neuter services for animals adopted from the 
City of Temple Animal Shelter in exchange for a voucher purchased at the time of adoption. 

The proposed agreement also authorizes disburing to the Foundation $23,120 in voucher fees that 
the City of Temple has been holding in escrow during the tranisition period from the Ida Ollife 
Foundation to the Greater Temple-Belton Foundation for Animal Care. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7525-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH THE GREATER TEMPLE-
BELTON FOUNDATION FOR ANIMAL CARE TO ADMINISTER A SPAY 
AND NEUTER VOUCHER PROGRAM FOR THE CITY OF TEMPLE 
ANIMAL SHELTER; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, at its October 27, 2014 meeting, the Animal Services Advisory Board voted to 
recommend approval of a contract with the Greater Temple-Belton Foundation for Animal Care 
to administer a spay and neuter voucher program at the City of Temple Animal Shelter; 
 
 Whereas, since 2005, the City of Temple Animal Shelter has participated in a spay and 
neuter program administered by the Ida Ollife Foundation - this past year, the Ida Ollife 
Foundation disbanded and a new foundation was established, the Greater Temple-Belton 
Foundation for Animal Care and this new foundation desires to continue the spay and neuter 
voucher program;  

 Whereas, under the proposed agreement, the City of Temple will establish a $45 voucher 
fee for each adopted animal which has either already been spayed or neutered by the Foundation 
or for a spay and/or neuter voucher at the time of adoption; 

 Whereas, these funds will pass through to the Foundation on a quarterly basis and the 
Foundation will use those funds for reasonable and necessary expenses of administering the spay 
and neuter voucher program; 

 Whereas, the Foundation will enter into a contract with one or more qualified 
veterinarians to perform spay and neuter services for those animals adopted from the City of 
Temple Animal Shelter in exchange for a voucher purchased at the time of adoption; 

 Whereas, the proposed contract will also authorize a distribution to the Foundation of all 
voucher fees that the City of Temple has been holding in escrow during the transition period 
from the Ida Ollife Foundation to the Greater Temple-Belton Foundation for Animal Care – as of 
September 30, 2014, the balance of the voucher fees was $23,450; and  

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
contract with the Greater Temple-Belton Foundation for Animal Care, after approval as to form 
by the City Attorney, to administer a spay and neuter program for the City of Temple Animal 
Shelter, establish a $45 voucher fee for each adopted animal, and distribute all voucher fees to 
the Foundation that the City has been holding in escrow during the transition period. 
 

Part 2:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

1 
 



 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 



sh 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

11/06/14 
Item #4(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Traci L. Barnard, Director of Finance  

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract with Valley View 
Consulting, LLC for Investment Advisory Services.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The City has utilized the services of Valley View Consulting, LLC for the past two 
years to assist with the management of its investment portfolio. Based on the amount of the current 
investment portfolio and interest rate environment, staff has determined an investment consultant 
would continue to add value to the portfolio. 

Staff has selected Valley View Consulting for the Investment Advisory Services recommendation. 
Valley View Consulting is a SEC registered investment advisory firm serving Texas public entities in a 
variety of cash and investment management and consulting roles.  Valley View provides completely 
independent advice and consultation and is not affiliated with any investment pool, mutual fund, 
broker/dealer, financial institution, or investment provider. The investment services the City will 
receive include: 

• Strategic portfolio advice,
• Investment policy and bond covenant review,
• Cash flow model development for all non-bond funds,
• Bond proceeds cash flow model assistance,
• Complete analysis of eligible investment options,
• Thorough deposit and transaction documentation,
• Effective broker/dealer management,
• Integrated bond proceeds investment,
• Customized communication, reporting, and training, and
• Assistance with the Bank Depository RFA process.



11/06/14 
Item #4(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT. In consideration of these services, the annual fee would be based on the average 
quarter end book value of investments as follows: 

.036% (3.6 basis points)  Up to and including $85,000,000 

.030% (3 basis points) Over $85,000,000 up to and including $150,000,000 

.020% (2 basis points) Over $150,000,000 up to and including $250,000,000 

.010% (1 basis point) Over $250,000,000 

$38,000 is available in account 110-1200-515-26-16, Professional and $17,000 is available in 
account 520-5000-535-26-16, Professional. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7526-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH VALLEY VIEW 
CONSULTING, LLC FOR INVESTMENT ADVISORY SERVICES; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, The City has utilized the services of Valley View Consulting, LLC for the past 
two years to assist with the management of its investment portfolio - based on the amount of the 
current investment portfolio and interest rate environment, staff has determined an investment 
consultant would continue to add value to the portfolio; 
 
 Whereas, staff recommends Council approve a contract with Valley View Consulting for 
the Investment Advisory Services - Valley View Consulting is a SEC registered investment 
advisory firm serving Texas public entities in a variety of cash and investment management and 
consulting roles;  

 Whereas, Valley View provides completely independent advice and consultation and is 
not affiliated with any investment pool, mutual fund, broker/dealer, financial institution, or 
investment provider; 

 Whereas, the investment services the City will receive include strategic portfolio advice, 
investment policy and bond covenant review, cash flow model development for all non-bond 
funds, bond proceeds cash flow model assistance, complete analysis of eligible investment 
options, thorough deposit and transaction documentation, effective broker/dealer management, 
integrated bond proceeds investment, customized communication, reporting, and training, and 
assistance with the Bank Depository RFA process;  
 
 Whereas, in consideration of these services, the annual fee would be based on the 
average quarter end book value of investments and funds are available in Account Nos: 110-
1200-515-2616 and 520-5000-535-2616; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
contract with Valley View Consulting, LLC, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, for 
investment advisory services. 
 

Part 2:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

1 
 



 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

11/06/14 
Item #4(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract for the base 
bid and bid alternates #1-6 with Austin Engineering Company, of Austin, for rehabilitation of the 
Hickory Lift Station in an amount not to exceed $403,100, as well as, declare an official intent to 
reimburse the expenditures with the issuance of 2015 Utility Revenue Bonds. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description.

ITEM SUMMARY:  The Hickory Lift Station, located in the Bird Creek drainage basin, is an important 
part of the wastewater collection system. Over the past several years, the station has experienced 
numerous pump failures/stoppages due to the inability to pass debris, long run times, and not being 
able to keep up during increased flows, sometimes causing overflows at the station. After preliminary 
evaluation, it has been determined the pumps are not adequately sized to meet the needs of the 
service area and need to be replaced. 

On October 21, 2014, four (4) bids were received. Per the attached bid tabulation, Austin Engineering 
submitted the low bid with a base bid in the amount of $342,100, which addressed primary lift station 
components. Six add alternates totaling $61,000, were also accepted to remove and replace various 
valves that are beginning to fail. The engineer checked references and recommends awarding 
construction to the low bidder, Austin Engineering. Construction time allotted for the project is 250 
calendar days from the authorization of the notice to proceed. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Currently funding in the amount of $248,724 is available in account 561-5400-
535-6905, project 100991.  The remaining needed funds in the amount of $154,376 will be funded 
with the proposed 2015 Utility Revenue Bonds to be issued Spring 2015.  Total funds in the amount 
of $403,100 will be made available in account 561-5400-535-6905, project 100991, to fund this 
construction contract in the amount not to exceed of $403,100 with Austin Engineering Company. 



11/06/14 
Item #4(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation 
Bid Tabulation 
Project Map 
Resolution 















 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7527-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH AUSTIN 
ENGINEERING COMPANY, OF AUSTIN, TEXAS, FOR THE BASE BID 
AND BID ALTERNATES NUMBER 1-6, FOR THE REHABILITATION OF 
THE HICKORY LIFT STATION, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$403,100; DECLARING AN OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE THE 
EXPENDITURES WITH THE ISSUANCE OF 2015 UTILITY REVENUE 
BONDS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Hickory Lift Station, located in the Bird Creek drainage basin, is an 
important part of the wastewater collection system and over the past several years, the station has 
experienced numerous pump failures/stoppages due to the inability to pass debris, long run times, 
and not being able to keep up during increased flows, sometimes causing overflows at the 
station; 
 

Whereas, after preliminary evaluation, it has been determined the pumps are not 
adequately sized to meet the needs of the service area and need to be replaced; 
 

Whereas, on October 21, 2014, four (4) bids were received and Austin Engineering 
submitted the low bid with a base bid in the amount of $342,100, which addressed primary lift 
station components; 
 

Whereas, six add alternates were also accepted to remove and replace various valves that 
are beginning to fail - the engineer checked references and recommends awarding construction 
contract to Austin Engineering Company of Austin, Texas in the amount of $403,100; 
 

Whereas, this project will be funded with the proposed 2015 Utility Revenue Bonds to be 
issued in the Spring of 2015; 
 

Whereas, the City of Temple anticipates the issuance of one or more series of 
obligations, the interest on which will be excludable from gross income under Section 103 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, in order to finance all or a portion of this project; 
 

Whereas, certain expenditures relating to the Project will be paid prior to the issuance of 
the Obligations and the City hereby certifies that such expenditures have not been made prior to 
the date of passage of this Resolution; 
 

Whereas, upon issuance of the Obligations, the City desires to reimburse these prior 
expenditures with proceeds of the Obligations;  
 

Whereas, Section 1.150.2 of the Treasury Regulations provides that an expenditure on 
the Project may not be reimbursed from Obligation proceeds unless, along with other 
requirements, the City declares official intent to reimburse the expenditure prior to the date that 
the expenditure to be reimbursed was paid;  
 

Whereas, funding for this construction contract is available in Account No. 561-5400-
535-6905, Project No. 100991; and 
 

1 
 



 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager to execute a construction contract 
with Austin Engineering Company of Austin, Texas, after approval as to form by the City 
Attorney, for the base bid and bid alternates number 1-6, for the rehabilitation of the Hickory Lift 
Station, in an amount not to exceed $403,100. 
 

Part 2:  This Resolution is a declaration of official intent under Section 1.150.2 of the 
Treasury Regulations by the City that it reasonably expects to reimburse the expenditures 
described in Part 1 with proceeds of debt to be incurred by the City, such debt to be issued on or 
before eighteen (18) months after the date of (i) the date the first  expenditure is paid; or (ii) the 
date on which the property is placed in service, but in no event three years after the first 
expenditure is paid. 
 

Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

11/06/14 
Item #4(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., City Engineer 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an amendment to the professional 
services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, for engineering services required for bid, 
construction phase and onsite representation services for the Outer Loop (Phase 3) from Adams to 
the channel in an amount not to exceed $96,700. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: West Temple is rapidly growing along the West Adams corridor (see attached 
Map). Roadway improvements to the Outer Loop (Old Waco Rd) south of West Adams are needed to 
support continued development.  

The engineering services authorized by Council on February 20, 2014, consisted of design and 
revisions of the Phase 3 roadway design to current City standards in the amount of $198,640. The 
infrastructure designed with this project includes approximately one fifth of a mile of arterial 
thoroughfare and sidewalks and approximately two fifths of a mile of associated utility adjustments. 
The design is complete and staff is prepared to proceed to the bid and construction phases. 

The proposed timeline for construction is 210 calendar days (see attached Proposal) from the Notice 
to Proceed.  Per the attachment the engineering services are as follows: 

Bidding $   6,500 
Construction Administration $ 48,600 
Onsite Representation $ 41,600 

Total  $ 96,700 

The engineer’s opinion of probable cost for construction of the project is $2,430,000.  Advertising and 
bidding is expected to occur within the next month. 



11/06/14 
Item #4(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT: Currently, funding in the amount of $841,700 is available in account 365-3400-
531-6813, project 101121, to fund the contract amendment of professional services Kasberg, Patrick 
& Associates, LP in an amount not to exceed $96,700.   

ATTACHMENTS: 
Proposal 
Map 
Resolution 









06-133
X

APPROVED BY
DESIGNED BY
PROJECT NO.

By: JDM

DATE

Plotted: Feb 13,  2014 - 12:03pm
C 2014 Kasberg, Patrick & Assoc. LP

City of Temple, Texas
Outer Loop Preliminary Design

P
:\T

em
pl

e\
20

06
\2

00
6-

13
3\

C
A

D
\O

P
TI

O
N

_1
_F

IN
A

L_
E

X
H

IB
IT

S
\O

U
TE

R
 L

O
O

P
 3

 A
T 

W
E

S
T 

A
D

A
M

S
 2

.d
w

g

P-01SHEET NO.

OF

on

This document is released for 
the purpose of interim review 

under the authority of

It is not to be used for 

purposes.
construction, bidding or permit 

R. David Patrick, P.E. 82738

01

0 50 100

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEETTYPICAL FOUR LANE ROADWAY - SECTION
STA. 208+00 TO STA. 211+00

PROPOSED OPTION

NOTE:
RESEARCH PKWY/OUTER LOOP IS DESIGNATED
TO BE 45 MPH. SPEEDS MUST BE LOWERED TO
30 MPH TO MEET DESIGN STANDARDS FOR
SUPERELEVATION AND TRANSITIONS.



 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7528-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP, 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES RELATED TO THE 
EXPANSION OF THE OUTER LOOP (PHASE 3), IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $96,700; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, West Temple is rapidly growing along the West Adams corridor and roadway 
improvements to the Outer Loop (Old Waco Rd) south of West Adams are needed to support 
continued development; 
 
 Whereas, on February 20, 2014, Council authorized a contract with Kasberg, Patrick, & 
Associates, LP for engineering services related to this road expansion project which consisted of 
design of and revisions to the Phase 3 roadway design to current City standards – the additional 
services associated with this amendment includes bid, construction phase, and onsite 
representation services;   
 
 Whereas, funding is available in Account No. 365-3400-531-6813, Project No. 101121, 
to fund this contract amendment; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute an 
amendment to the professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, of 
Temple, Texas, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, for engineering services required 
for bid, construction phase and onsite representation services for the expansion of the Outer 
Loop (Phase 3) from Adams to the channel, in an amount not to exceed $96,700. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

11/06/14 
Item #4(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., City Engineer 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Walker Partners, LLC, of Killeen for engineering services including design, surveying, bidding 
and construction administration required to replace” water mains along East Adams Avenue and 
North 3rd Street in an amount not to exceed $175,660; as well as declare an official intent to 
reimburse the expenditures with the issuance of 2015 Utility Revenue Bonds.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The water lines in these areas are at least 50 years old and consist of cast-iron 
pipe with lead-poured joints.  They’re deteriorating and experience frequent leaks. To continue 
service to these areas and improve fire protection in the North 3rd Street area, this project was 
identified in the recently updated Capital Improvement Project list. The project replaces nearly 3,500 
feet of 6” water main and 5,500 feet of 2” water main (total replacement of 9,000 feet). 

As identified in the attached proposal letter the proposed timeline for design of the project is 220 
calendar days. Per the attachment, the engineering services are as follows: 

Boundary Survey/ROW Verification $  15,000 
Topographic Survey  $  43,470 
Preliminary Design  $  34,000 
Final Design  $  50,000 
Bidding $    4,000 
Construction Administration $  16,000 
Construction Staking $  11,190 
Reimbursables $    2,000 

TOTAL $175,660 



11/06/14 
Item #4(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT: Council authorized these projects as part of the Capital Improvement Plan in the 
FY 2015 Budget.  Both projects will be funded with the proposed 2015 Utility Revenue Bonds to be 
issued Spring 2015.  Funds in the amount of $1,150,000 will be made available in the following 
accounts: 

Project Description Account # Project # Amount 
Water Line Replacement – along 3rd between 
Irvin & Nugent 

561-5400-535-6952 101200 $650,000 

Water Line Replacement – along East Adams 561-5400-535-6953 101205 $500,000 
Total Funded $1,150,000 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Project Map (N 3rd) 
Project Map (E Adams) 
Resolution 



www.walkerpartners.com 
TBPE Registration No. 8053 │ TBPLS Registration No. 10032500 

H:\My Documents\CIP Projects\PM - RICHARD\WATER - E Adams & N 3rd Street\N 3rd and East Adams Water Lines (Engineer's Proposal).docx 

P R O P O S AL

To: City of Temple Department Public Works 

Attn: Richard Wilson, P.E., Project Manager 

From: Otto E. Wiederhold, P.E.

Project Name: City of Temple Water Main Replacement CIP – N. 3rd Street & E. Adams Ave. 

Project No.: 2-01521 

Re: Proposal for Professional Services 

Date: October 16, 2014 

Xc: Jed Walker, P.E. 

C I T Y  O F  T E M P L E  W A T E R  M A I N  R E P L A C E M E N T  C I P  –  N O R T H  3 R D  S T R E E T  &  
E A S T  A D A M S  A V E N U E  

Walker Partners, LLC (Engineer) appreciates this opportunity to submit this Proposal to provide 
professional surveying and civil engineering services to  the City of Temple (City) in connection with 
Water Main Replacement CIP – N. 3rd Street & E. Adams Avenue  (Project).  Based upon our initial 
meetings, we understand that (City)  intends to replace the existing water main in the north R.O.W. of E 
Adams Avenue from 16th Street to 36th Street, replace the existing water mains along both the east and 
west R.O.W. of N. 3rd Street from W. Irvin Ave.  to Nugent Ave. and replace the existing water main in the 
alley between N. 3rd Street and N. 1st Street from W. Elm Ave. to W. Irvin Ave  for this Project. 

The scope of services and associated fees that Walker Partners proposes to provide for this Project are 
outlined below: 

1.00 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

1.01 SURVEYOR’S SERVICES 

A. Boundary Survey/R.O.W. Verification (Phase 11) 
1. Perform Deed Research and acquire R.O.W. strip maps if available to identify

the existing limits of the R.O.W for E. Adams Ave, N. 3rd Street and the Alley 
between N 3rd Street and N. 1st Street within the limits of the project area.   

2. Prepare a drawing of the R.O.W. of the streets and alley described in 1 above
based upon the existing survey monuments found in the field; new survey 
monuments placed; the adjoining property record information; and the 
descriptions of the subject R.O.W..  

B. Topographic Survey (Phase 12) 
1. Perform an on-the-ground field survey to obtain the topography (terrain data)

and other visible and apparent surface features (manmade or natural) such as 
ditches, swales, channels, embankments, drainage structures, catch basins 
and inlets, manholes, above-grade utility appurtenances, pavements, 
significant trees (hardwoods greater than 8 inches in diameter), fences, 
building structures, water’s edge, etc. 



 – 2 – October 28, 2014  

 

 The Engineer shall provide traffic control for the survey crew as required by 
TXDOT while the survey crew is gathering design topographic information for 
design purposes within the TXDOT R.O.W. This field survey work will require 
single lane closures for at least six days the cost of such is included within the 
fees for Topographic Survey (Phase 12) 

 
2. Establish vertical control at the site and place benchmarks based upon North 

American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD88), unless otherwise specified by 
client. 

 
3. Prepare a topographic map from the topographic survey depicting the physical 

features as described above and with elevation contours at a 1-foot interval.   

 
1.02 ENGINEER’S BASIC SERVICES 

             A.       Preliminary Design Phase (Phase 30) 

1. Consult with Owner to define and clarify Owner’s requirements for the Project 
and available data. 

2. Request copies of the City of Temple Water Master Plan & Water Model as well 
as the City of Temple Hike & Bike Trail Master Plan.  Research the documents 
to recommend proper sizing of the replacement waterline sizes and 
sidewalk/trail width when replacing existing sidewalks within the project limits. 

3. Identify, consult with, and analyze requirements of governmental authorities 
having jurisdiction to approve the portions of the Project designed or specified 
by Engineer. 

4. Identify and evaluate alternate solutions available to Owner and, after 
consultation with Owner, recommend to Owner those solutions which in 
Engineer’s judgment meet Owner’s requirements for the Project. 

5. Prepare a report which will, as appropriate, contain schematic layouts, 
sketches, and conceptual design criteria with appropriate exhibits to indicate 
the agreed-to requirements, considerations involved, and those alternate 
solutions available to Owner which Engineer recommends.  For each 
recommended solution Engineer will provide the following, which will be 
separately itemized:  opinion of probable Construction Cost & Design Report. 

6. Attend preliminary conferences with the Owner and other interested parties 
regarding the Project. 

7. Establish the scope of any soil and foundation investigations or any special 
surveys and tests which, in the opinion of the Engineer, may be required; assist 
the Owner in arranging for such work to be done, for the Owner’s account. 

8. Prepare preliminary design documents on the Project in sufficient detail to 
indicate clearly the problems involved and the alternate solutions available to 
the Owner, including final design criteria, preliminary drawings, an outline of 
specifications, and setting forth clearly the Engineer’s recommendations. 

9. Prepare a preliminary Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost. 
10. Furnish the Owner the required number of copies of the preliminary plan, 

including preliminary layouts and cost estimates. 

B. Final Design Phase (Phase 40) 
1. Prepare final Drawings and Specifications indicating the scope, extent, and 

character of the Work to be performed and furnished by Contractor. The 



 – 3 – October 28, 2014  

 

Drawings to be prepared with this Phase of the Work, in general, will include 
the following: 
a. General Condition Drawings – these Drawings shall be for informational, 

permitting, and bidding purposes and shall, in general, consist of the 
following: 
i) General Notes and Project Specific Notes 
ii) Legends, Abbreviations, and Symbols 
iii) Survey Control Plan 
iv) Topographic Survey 
v) Sedimentation and Erosion Control Plan - prepare a Sedimentation 

and Erosion Control Plan for the project site including 
recommendations of “best management practices” for controlling 
sedimentation and erosion on the site during construction 
activities. 

b. Water Distribution System Plans – prepare drawings for the water 
improvements including fire hydrants, meters, mains and service(s) to 
serve the proposed project.   

c. Wastewater Collection System Plans and Profiles – prepare drawings for 
the proposed sanitary sewer system including the sewer pipes and 
appurtenances, manholes, clean-outs, trenching details, and other 
details necessary for bidding and construction if such wastewater lines 
are required to be relocated as a result of installing waterlines within the 
project limits. 

d. Details – provide project-specific details, municipality standard details, 
and state agency (TxDOT) standard details as required for permitting, 
bidding, and construction purposes. 

2. Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for Owner’s use 
in filing applications for permits from or approvals of governmental authorities 
having jurisdiction to review or approve the final design of the Project; assist 
Owner in consultations with such authorities; and revise the Drawings and 
Specifications in response to directives from such authorities. 

3. Advise Owner of any adjustments to the opinion of probable Construction Cost 
known to Engineer. 

4. Prepare and furnish Bidding Documents for review by Owner, its legal counsel, 
and other advisors, and assist Owner in the preparation of other related 
documents. Owner shall submit to Engineer any comments. 

5. Revise the Bidding Documents in accordance with comments and instructions 
from the Owner, as appropriate, and submit 5 final copies of the Bidding 
Documents, a revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and any other 
deliverables to Owner as per the agreed to project schedule. 

6. The number of prime contracts for Work designed or specified by Engineer 
upon which the Engineer’s compensation has been established under this 
Agreement is one.  If more prime contracts are awarded, Engineer shall be 
entitled to an equitable increase in its compensation under this Agreement. 

 
C. Bidding or Negotiating Phase (Phase 50) 

1. Assist Owner in advertising for and obtaining bids or proposals for the Work 
and, where applicable, maintain a record of prospective bidders to whom 
Bidding Documents have been issued, conduct pre-Bid conferences, if any, 



 – 4 – October 28, 2014  

 

and receive and process contractor deposits or charges for the Bidding 
Documents. 

2. Issue Addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the Bidding 
Documents. 

3. Provide information or assistance needed by Owner in the course of any 
negotiations with prospective contractors. 

4. Consult with Owner as to the acceptability of subcontractors, suppliers, and 
other individuals and entities proposed by prospective contractors for those 
portions of the Work as to which such acceptability is required by the Bidding 
Documents. 

5. Attend the Bid opening, prepare Bid tabulation sheets, and assist Owner in 
evaluating Bids or proposals and in assembling and awarding contracts for the 
Work. 

D. Construction Administration Phase (Phase 60) 
1. Assist in the preparation of formal Contract Documents. 
2. Pre-Construction Conference.  Conduct a Pre-Construction Conference prior to 

commencement of Work at the Site. 
3. Schedules.  Receive, review, and determine the acceptability of any and all 

schedules that Contractor is required to submit to Engineer, including the 
Progress Schedule, Schedule of Submittals, and Schedule of Values. 

4. Make periodic visits to the site (as distinguished from the continuous services 
of a resident Project Representative) to observe the progress and quality of the 
executed work and to determine in general if the work is proceeding in 
accordance with the Contract Documents.  
In performing these services, the Engineer will endeavor to protect the Owner 
against defects and deficiencies in the work of the contractor, but he cannot 
guarantee the performance of the contractor, nor be responsible for the actual 
supervision of construction operations or for the safety measures that the 
contractor takes or should take. 

5. Consult and advise with the Owner; issue all instructions to the contractor 
requested by the Owner; and prepare and issue routine change orders with 
Owner’s approval. 

6. Review samples, catalog data, schedules, shop drawings, laboratory, shop and 
mill tests of material and equipment and other data which the contractor 
submits.  This review is for the benefit of the Owner and covers only general 
conformance with the information given by the Contract Documents.  The 
contractor is to review and stamp his approval on submittals prior to submitting 
to Engineer, and review by the Engineer does not relieve the contractor of any 
responsibility such as dimensions to be confirmed and correlated at the job 
site, appropriate safety measures to protect workers and the public, or the 
necessity to construct a complete and workable facility in accordance with 
Contract Documents. 

7. Obtain and review monthly and final estimates for payments to contractors, and 
furnish to the Owner any recommended payments to contractors and suppliers; 
assemble written guarantees which are required by the Contract Documents. 

8. Conduct, in company with the Owner, a final inspection of the Project for 
compliance with the Contract Documents, and submit recommendations 
concerning project status, as it may affect Owner’s final payment to the 
contractors. The Engineer shall provide to the City the “Record Drawings” in 
both mylar and electronic format.  



 – 5 – October 28, 2014  

 

 

E. Construction Staking (Phase 65) 
The Engineer shall provide line and grade staking for the street, drainage, water and 
wastewater improvements, one-time, on behalf of the Owner, for the following 
construction items: 
 

 Storm sewer and inlets if relocation is required  
 Sanitary sewer collection system if relocation is required 
 Water distribution system 
 Curb and gutter as required 

 
F. Additional Services 
 The Engineer, if requested by the City in writing, shall furnish a Resident Project 

Representative at the Site during the Construction Phase. The Resident Project 
Representative will be Engineer’s agent or employee and under Engineer’s 
supervision. As used herein, the term Resident Project Representative includes any 
assistants of Resident Project Representative agreed to by Owner. The proposed 
fees for furnishing the Resident Project Representative is $40,000.00 

 
 The Engineer shall, if requested by the City in writing, contract with a sub-surface 

engineering firm specializing in the locating of underground utilities such that the 
existing utilities (water, wastewater, fiber optic, natural gas, etc) can be located both 
horizontally and vertically within the R.O.W. & alleys without damage to said utilities. 
The Engineer has secured a proposal for these services by Cardno, Inc., in the 
amount of $75,875.00   

  
  G.  Reimbursables (Phase 199) 
 This phase shall include the cost of postage, shipping, additional copies of reports, 

bidding documents and construction documents above the agreed to number as well 
as other incidental items.  

  

2.00 SCHEDULE FOR SERVICES 
Walker Partners acknowledges the importance to the Owner of the project schedule and agrees 
to put forth its best professional efforts to perform its services under this proposal in a manner 
consistent with that schedule. Walker Partners’ performance shall be governed by sound 
professional practices. Walker Partners has developed a project schedule outlining each of the 
items included previously described in the scope of services. This schedule is attached. Walker 
Partners acknowledges that this is a conservative schedule. Changes in the scope, fee, or 
schedule shall be addressed in the Contract Amendment Process.   

 
 

3.00 FEES 
For the ENGINEERING SERVICES, outlined above, the City agrees to pay Walker Partners a 
lump sum fee of no more than One hundred and seventy-five thousand, six hundred and sixty 
dollars  ($175,660.00) as outlined in the  itemized breakdown of fees to be invoiced monthly at a 
percentage of the work completed. It is acknowledged that fees for Additional Services Phase 80 
($115,875.00) must be authorized by the City in writing before the Engineer is authorized to 
perform the work as defined in Section 1.00. Additional Services in whole or in part can only be 



 – 6 – October 28, 2014  

 

added to the Contract for Services by a Contract Amendment executed by both Walker Partners, 
LLC, and the City of Temple.  

 
Below is an itemized breakdown of the proposed fees: 

 
Phase No. Description Lump Sum Fee 

09 
Boundary Survey/R.O.W. 
verification*       $15,000.00 

12 Topographic Survey         $43,470.00 
30 Preliminary Design Phase       $34,000.00 
40 Final Design Phase         $50,000.00 
50 Bidding or Negotiating Phase         $4,000.00 
60 Construction Administration Phase         $16,000.00 
65 Construction Staking         $11,190.00 
199 Reimbursables         $2,000.00 

   
 TOTAL LUMP SUM FEE         $175,660.00 

 
 * This phase will be taxed unless proof of tax exemption is provided 

 
4.00 EXCLUSIONS 

The following items are excluded from this proposal.  If there are questions about any other 
services not listed here, they shall be clarified prior to approval and acceptance of this proposal. 

4.01 The proposed engineering services do not include the following: 
 Wastewater lift station design and drawings 
 Off-site water and wastewater design and drawings 
 Off-site street and drainage design and drawings 
 Design work related to LEEDS certification(s) 
 Landscape architectural services 
 Geotechnical Investigation 
 Environmental Investigation 
 Wetlands determination and permitting 
 Determination of any listed endangered or threatened species 
 Determination of any designated critical habitats in the Project area 
 Design of screening walls, light pole bases, transformer or generator pads, 

hardscape features, pavers and/or site signage 
 Design of any underfloor drainage systems or grading 
 Design of French drain systems around the building perimeters 
 Landscape plan and irrigation plans 
 Site lighting plans 
 Preparation of “as-built” drawings 
 Construction staking (except as noted) 

 Abstracting fee title, easements, restrictions or other encumbrances 

 Abandonment of private or public easements 

 Assistance to the Owner and/or the Contractor in filing the Notice of Intent (NOI) for 
the proposed construction activities 



 – 7 – October 28, 2014  

 

 Design of any “dry” utility facilities (i.e. gas, electric, phone, cable TV, etc.) 

4.02 Any major changes involved after Construction Documents have been completed and 
approved will be charged on a time basis per hourly rates attached herewith. 

5.00 ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL 
If the Scope of Services, Schedule, and Fees outlined herein are acceptable to  the City of 
Temple, the City will prepare a “Standard Form of Agreement for Professional Services” for 
review, approval, and execution. 

 
 

 
  
  



Replace Existing Water Lines

E HOUSTON A

E IRVIN AVE

E KING AVE

E LAMAR AVE

E MUNROE AV

N
 7

TH
 S

T

N
 1

ST
 S

T

N
 3

R
D

 S
T

N
 M

A
IN

 S
T

W MUNROE AVE

W LAMAR AVE

W KING AVE

W IRVIN AVE

W HOUSTON AVE

W GARFIELD AVE

N
 2

N
D

 S
T

E JAC

N
 5

TH
 S

T

N
 2

N
D

 S
T



Replace Existing Water Lines

S 
34

TH
 S

T

E CENTRAL AVE

E ADAMS AVE

E CALHOUN AVE

E BARTON AVE

S 
24

TH
 S

T

FO
W

LE
R

N
 2

0T
H

 S
T

18
TH

 S
T

S 
22

N
D

 S
T

S 
20

TH
 S

T

N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

N
 2

2N
D

 S
T

CENTRAL AVE

E A AVE

N
 3

4T
H

 S
T

N
 2

4T
H

 S
T

FO
W

LE
R

 R
D

PR
EW

IT
T



 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7529-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH WALKER PARTNERS, LLC, OF KILLEEN, TEXAS, FOR 
ENGINEERING SERVICES INCLUDING DESIGN, SURVEYING, BIDDING 
AND CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION REQUIRED TO REPLACE 
WATER MAINS ALONG EAST ADAMS AVENUE AND NORTH 3RD 
STREET, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $175,660, DECLARING AN 
OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE THE EXPENDITURES WITH THE 
ISSUANCE OF 2015 UTILITY REVENUE BONDS; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the water lines along East Adams Avenue and North 3rd Street are at least 50 
years old and consist of cast-iron pipe with lead-poured joints which are deteriorating - to 
continue service to these areas and improve fire protection in the North 3rd Street area, this 
project was identified in the recently updated Capital Improvement Project list; 
 

Whereas, this project will replace nearly 3,500 feet of 6-inch water main and 5,500 feet 
of 2-inch water main, for a total replacement of approximately 9,000 feet and will be funded with 
the proposed 2015 Utility Revenue Bonds to be issued in the Spring of 2015; 
 

Whereas, the City of Temple anticipates the issuance of one or more series of 
obligations, the interest on which will be excludable from gross income under Section 103 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, in order to finance all or a portion of this project; 
 

Whereas, certain expenditures relating to the Project will be paid prior to the issuance of 
the Obligations and the City hereby certifies that such expenditures have not been made prior to 
the date of passage of this Resolution; 
 

Whereas, upon issuance of the Obligations, the City desires to reimburse these prior 
expenditures with proceeds of the Obligations;  
 

Whereas, Section 1.150.2 of the Treasury Regulations provides that an expenditure on 
the Project may not be reimbursed from Obligation proceeds unless, along with other 
requirements, the City declares official intent to reimburse the expenditure prior to the date that 
the expenditure to be reimbursed was paid;  
 
 Whereas, Council authorized these projects as part of the Capital Improvement Plan in 
the fiscal year 2015 budget and both projects will be funded with the proposed 2015 Utility 
Revenue Bonds to be issued Spring 2015; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 
 
 

1 
 



 
 
Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 

professional services agreement with Walker Partners, LLC, of Killeen, Texas, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, for engineering services including design, surveying, bidding and 
construction administration required to replace water mains along East Adams Avenue and North 
3rd Street in an amount not to exceed $175,660. 

 
Part 2:  This Resolution is a declaration of official intent under Section 1.150.2 of the 

Treasury Regulations by the City that it reasonably expects to reimburse the expenditures 
described in Part 1 with proceeds of debt to be incurred by the City, such debt to be issued on or 
before eighteen (18) months after the date of (i) the date the first  expenditure is paid; or (ii) the 
date on which the property is placed in service, but in no event three years after the first 
expenditure is paid. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 



   

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
11/06/14 

Item #4(G) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer  
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Clark & Fuller, PLLC, of Temple for professional services required to design and survey work for 
the 2015 Utility Replacement program in an amount not to exceed $213,791.59. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The Public Works Utility Services Division has experienced numerous water and 
wastewater issues in southeast Temple. These lines, mostly vitrified clay pipe, are aging and 
beginning to fail. Lines targeted for wastewater replacement include South 18th Street from Avenue H 
to its dead end, South 20th Street from Avenue H to its dead end, and South 24th Street from Avenue 
H to Avenue North.  Lines targeted for water replacement include South 22nd Street from Avenue H to 
Avenue I, and South 24th Street from Avenue J to Avenue North.  These projects will replace 6,712 
linear feet of wastewater lines with PVC pipe ranging in diameter from 8” to 27”, replace 2,105 linear 
feet of water lines with 8” PVC pipe, and provide new water and wastewater services.  This work is 
also being performed in advance of significant overlay improvements scheduled to occur in the near 
future within this region of the City. 
 
The proposed timeline for the design is 120 calendar days. Per the attachment, the professional 
engineering services are as follows: 
 

Professional Services  
Surveying $   35,465.00 
Civil Engineering Design  $ 149,158.59 
Bidding $        990.00 
Construction Administration $     3,750.00 
Inspection $   24,428.00 
  
Total $ 213,791.59 

 
 
 



11/06/14 
Item #4(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Council authorized these projects as part of the Water/Wastewater Capital 
Improvement Program for FY 2014.  Projects are detailed below. 

Project Description Account # Project # Amount 

WWL Rplc – S 18th St from Ave H to Dead End 520-5900-535-6361 101195 $280,000 

WWL Rplc – S 20th St from Ave H to Dead End 520-5900-535-6361 101196 $415,000 

WL Impr – S 22nd St from Ave H to Ave I 520-5900-535-6357 101194 $325,000 

Total Projects $1,020,000 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Map 
Resolution 



 2015 City of Temple Water and Wastewater Replacement Projects 1

October 24, 2014 

City of Temple 
Director of Public Works 
Nicole Torralva, P.E. 
3210 E. Ave. H, Bldg. A 
Temple, TX  76501 

Re:  Revised Professional Services Proposal for the 2015 City of Temple Water and Wastewater Line Replacement 
Projects: 

18th Street Wastewater Replacement – Ave. H to Dead End 
20th Street Wastewater Replacement – Ave. H to Dead End 
22nd Street Water Replacement – Ave. H to Ave. I 
24th Street Water Replacement – Ave. J to Ave. N 
24th Street Wastewater Replacement – Ave. H to Ave. N 

Dear Mrs. Torralva, 

We would like to thank the City of Temple for the opportunity to submit a preliminary opinion of probable cost and 
engineering fee proposal for the 2015 City of Temple Water and Wastewater Line Replacement Projects.  (Please 
refer to attached maps and documents for further information). 

These projects will consist of approximately 1,010 linear feet of new 27” PVC, 890 linear feet of new 21” PVC, 20 
linear feet of new 12” PVC, and 2,867 linear feet of new 8” PVC Sanitary Sewer Mains, and 2,105 linear feet of 8” 
PVC Water Mains are to be constructed via “open trench” construction.  In addition, 1,925 linear feet of new 8” 
HDPE Sanitary Sewer Main shall be constructed via trenchless pipe bursting methods.  These new utility mains are 
being constructed, within an existing residential subdivision, to replace existing utility mains that are aging and 
beginning to fail. 

Clark & Fuller, PLLC will complete design topography surveys, new sanitary sewer main designs, construction 
document preparation, provide construction administration, daily on-site project representation and inspection 
services, and post construction record drawings.   

The proposed timeline for the project design phase is 120 calendar days from the authorization of notice to proceed.  
Furthermore we estimate the contractor’s time to construct to be 195 calendar days. 

Clark & Fuller, PLLC, hereinafter Engineer, proposes to the City of Temple, hereinafter Client, Professional 
Engineering, Inspection, and Surveying Services for a Lump Sum Amount not to exceed $213,791.59.  We estimate 
the total cost of construction to be $1,754,806.90 and we estimate the total cost of construction including 
professional services and contingencies to be $1,968,598.49.  (Please refer to attached Maps, Exhibits, and the 
Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost for an itemized breakdown and scope of services.) 

Please contact us if you require additional information or have further questions regarding this proposal. 

Sincerely,

Monty L. Clark, P.E., CPESC  



 2015 City of Temple Water and Wastewater Replacement Projects 2

EXHIBIT “A” 
Professional Services Proposal for  

2015 City of Temple Water and Wastewater Line Replacement Projects 

Scope of Professional Services 

Surveying Services:        $ 35,465.00
Provide Project Elevation Benchmark  
Locate Existing Rights of Ways and Property Boundaries 
Prepare Design Topography Surveys 
Provide Construction Staking 

o Final Manhole Locations 

Civil Engineering Design Phase:       $ 149,158.59
Research Existing Utilities 
Prepare Final Design Construction Documents 
Technical  Specifications 
Provide Engineers Opinion of Construction Cost and Probable Days to Complete Project 
Construction  
Attend and Facilitate Project Coordination with the City Staff  
Attendance at Property Owner/Neighborhood Meetings (If required) 
Provide Miscellaneous Maps and Exhibit Drawings 

Project Bidding Phase:        $     990.00 

Construction Phase:        $     3,750.00
Attend and facilitate a Pre-Construction Meeting 
Review all Contractor Submittals 
Provide Construction Administration and Project “Site” Visits to assist contractor with field 
construction questions  
Assist the City of Temple with Construction Questions and Respond to Requests for Information 
(RFI’s) 
Review Contractor Applications for Payment and insure conformance with percentage of 
construction complete 
Execute Necessary Change Orders 
Attend Final Project Inspection 
Provide Final Inspection Punch List 
Prepare Record Drawings 

Daily Onsite Construction Inspection Services      $ 24,428.00 
Provide Daily On-Site Project Representation and Inspection Services 



 2015 City of Temple Water and Wastewater Replacement Projects 3

PROFESSIONAL FEE SCHEDULE 

Licensed Professional Engineer             $ 110.00/hr. 

Licensed Professional Architect      $ 125.00/hr. 

Design Technician       $ 70.00/hr. 

CADD Technician       $ 60.00/hr. 

CADD Draftsman       $  50.00/hr. 

Clerical         $  35.00/hr. 

Licensed Professional Land Surveyor     $ 105.00/hr. 

Field Crew & Total Station      $ 130.00/hr. 

Survey Research and Schematic Production    $  90.00/hr. 

Daily On-Site Inspection Services     $  40.00/hr. 

Landscape Designer       $  80.00/hr. 



N
EW

 2
7"

 P
V

C
 S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y

SE
W

ER
 M

A
IN

 V
IA

 O
PE

N
 C

U
T

N
EW

 8
" 

PV
C

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
SE

W
ER

 M
A

IN
 V

IA
 O

PE
N

 C
U

T
N

EW
 2

1"
 P

V
C

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
SE

W
ER

 M
A

IN
 V

IA
 O

PE
N

 C
U

T

N
EW

 8
" 

PV
C

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
SE

W
ER

 M
A

IN
 V

IA
 O

PE
N

 C
U

T
N

EW
 8

" 
PV

C
 S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y

SE
W

ER
 M

A
IN

 V
IA

 O
PE

N
 C

U
T

N
EW

 8
" 

D
R

17
 S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y

SE
W

ER
 M

A
IN

 V
IA

 B
U

R
ST

IN
G

N
EW

 8
" 

PV
C

W
A

TE
R

 M
A

IN

N
EW

 8
" 

PV
C

W
A

TE
R

 M
A

IN

LE
G

EN
D

:

K
EY

ED
 N

O
TE

S

N
EW

 2
7"

 P
V

C
 S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y

SE
W

ER
 M

A
IN

 V
IA

 O
PE

N
 C

U
T

N
EW

 8
" 

D
R

17
 S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y

SE
W

ER
 M

A
IN

 V
IA

 B
U

R
ST

IN
G



 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7530-R 
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
CLARK & FULLER, PLLC, OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, FOR THE DESIGN AND 
SURVEYING OF THE 2015 UTILITY REPLACEMENT PROGRAM, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $179,614.92; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

                          
 
 Whereas, the Public Works Utility Services Division has experienced numerous water and 
wastewater issues in southeast Temple and these lines, mostly vitrified clay pipe, are aging and 
beginning to fail; 
 

Whereas, lines targeted for wastewater replacement include South 18th Street from Avenue 
H to the dead end and South 20th Street from Avenue H to the dead end; 
 

Whereas, lines targeted for water replacement include South 22nd Street from Avenue H to 
Avenue I - these projects will replace pipes ranging in diameter from 8-inches to 27-inches and will 
provide new water and wastewater services; 
 
 Whereas, Council authorized these projects as part of the Water/Wastewater Capital 
Improvement Program for fiscal year 2014 and funds are available in Account No: 520-5900-535-
6361, Project No. 101195, Account No: 520-5900-535-6361, Project No. 101196 and Account No: 
520-5900-535-6357, Project No. 101194; 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
professional services agreement with Clark & Fuller, PLLC of Temple, Texas, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, for the design and surveying of the 2015 Utility Replacement Program, 
in an amount not to exceed $179,614.92. 
 

Part 2:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and 
purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 
 
        THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

              
        DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
11/06/14 

Item #4(H) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract amendment to a 
professional  services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, of Temple (KPA) for 
services required to provide design, bidding, and right-of-way support services for the Prairie View 
Road Widening in an amount not to exceed $697,400. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:   On August 15, 2013, Council adopted a resolution authorizing professional 
services with KPA for preliminary and final design services required for improvements to Prairie View 
Road from Research Pkwy to SH 317.  As proposed, Prairie View Road would end at a signalized 
intersection at SH 317.   
 
In a separate project, a signal was proposed at the intersection of FM 2483 and SH 317, creating two 
three-way signalized intersections on SH 317 approximately 1,100 feet apart. 
 
Prairie View Road Ph. II includes rerouting Prairie View Road to FM 2483 and creates one four-way 
signalized intersection rather than the two intersections originally proposed (Map attached).  The 
realignment enables a single intersection located between the existing Prairie View Road and FM 
2483 intersections with SH 317. TXDOT’s Waco District Engineer signed the attached Letter of 
Agreement on April 4, 2014, indicating concurrence with the proposed realignment. The Letter also 
documents that per the proposed plan FM 2483 would remain a TXDOT facility. This proposed 
alignment is phased for construction in two stages: Ph. 1 from Research Pkwy to North Pea Ridge 
Road and Ph. 2 from North Pea Ridge Road to FM 2483. 
 
The proposed Ph. 1 right-of-way support services include exhibits, estimates, and metes & bounds. 
Per the attached engineering proposal, specific tasks for both phases are as follows: 
 
 Prairie View Road Ph. I: Research Pkwy - North Pea Ridge Road 
  Bidding       $   6,500 
  SIC ROW Survey/Exhibit (2 Each)   $   3,800 
 



11/06/14 
Item #4(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

Partial Taking Survey/Detailed Exhibits (5 Each) $  21,610 
Subtotal $  31,910 

Prairie View Road Ph. II: N. Pea Ridge Road - FM 2483 
Preliminary Engineering Design  $150,000 
SIC ROW Survey/Exhibit (7 Each) $  13,300 
Partial Taking Survey/Detailed Exhibits (12 Each) $  38,180 
Final Engineering Design  $300,000 
Land Surveying 

Field Data Collection $    7,950 
ROW Parcels $  20,800 
Easements  $  17,600 
Structures in Conflict $  18,000 

Environmental Site Assessment Phase 1 $    2,800 
Archeological Investigation  $    9,450 
Geotechnical Investigation  $    2,500 
Bidding $    6,500 
TIA & Traffic  Signal  $  55,000 
KPA Sub-consultant Coordination  $  13,410 
KPA TxDOT Coordination  $  10,000 
Subtotal $665,490 

TOTAL $697,400 

Design (not including bidding or right-of-way support services) is proposed to be complete within 240 
calendar days. 

FISCAL IMPACT: In reference to the portion of the contract amendment related to Prairie View Road 
Phase I (Research Parkway to North Pea Ridge Road), funding in the amount of $31,910 is available 
in account 365-3400-531-6862, project 100984. 

In reference to the portion of the contract amendment related to Prairie View Road Phase II (North 
Pea Ride Road – FM 2483), will be funded with Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation that were sold October 16, 2014.  Funding in the amount of $7,145,000 will be made 
available in account 365-3400-531-6862, project 101257. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Map 
TXDOT Letter of Agreement 
Proposal 
Resolution 



PR
A

IR
IE

 V
IE

W
 R

D

PR
A

IR
IE

 V
IE

W
 P

H
 II

EX
H

IB
IT

 A

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
TE

M
PL

E,
 T

EX
A

S

N
O

TE
: T

H
IS

 M
A

P
 IS

 F
O

R
 P

R
E

LI
M

IN
A

R
Y

 R
E

V
IE

W
O

N
LY

.  
E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 A
N

D
 R

O
W

 L
IN

E
S

H
A

V
E

 N
O

T 
B

E
E

N
 F

IE
LD

 V
E

R
IF

IE
D

.

0

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

S
C

A
LE

 IN
 F

E
E

T

20
0

40
0

P:\Temple\2013\2013-128 Prairie-View\CAD\Base\Civil-3d\2013-128-PBASE-extended.dwg

P
R

A
IR

IE
 V

IE
W

 P
H

 II

FM 317

N. PEA RIDGE RD.

P
R

A
IR

IE
 V

IE
W

FM
 2

48
3

B
E

G
IN

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

E
N

D
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N























 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7531-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP, OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, FOR SERVICES REQUIRED TO PROVIDE DESIGN, BIDDING AND 
RIGHT-OF-WAY SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE PRAIRIE VIEW ROAD 
WIDENING, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $697,400; AND PROVIDING 
AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on August 15, 2013, Council adopted a resolution authorizing professional 
services with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP (‘KPA’) for preliminary and final design services 
required for improvements to Prairie View Road from Research Parkway to SH 317 - as proposed, 
Prairie View Road will end at a signalized intersection at SH 317; 
 
 Whereas, the project was broken into two phases and the design for Phase I is almost 
complete – the proposed amendment covers certain right-of-way support services for Phase I, as well 
as design, bidding and right-of-way support services for Phase II; 
 
 Whereas, Prairie View Road, Phase II includes rerouting Prairie View Road to FM 2483 and 
creates one four-way signalized intersection rather than the two intersections originally proposed - 
this realignment enables a single intersection located between the existing Prairie View Road and 
FM 2483 intersections with SH 317; 
 
 Whereas, funding is available for this professional services agreement amendment in 
Account No. 365-3400-531-6862, Project No. 100984 and 101257; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute an 
amendment to the professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, of 
Temple, Texas, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, for services required to provide 
design, bidding and right-of-way support services for the Prairie View Road widening, in an amount 
not to exceed $697,400. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of 
said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

11/06/14 
Item #4(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Chapter 380 Agreement with 
Temple Economic Development Corporation (TEDC) for conveyance to TEDC of an approximately 39 
acre parcel of City-owned land located off of Range Road.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The Temple Economic Development Corporation has requested that the City 
convey to it approximately 39 acres of City-owned land located off of Range Road. The property is to 
be used for business development purposes, which will include job creation and additional tax value. 
The prospective economic development on the site will be an industrial development. The 
conveyance will be addressed through a Chapter 380 Development Agreement between the City and 
TEDC. 

FISCAL IMPACT: At the present time, the property is exempt from property taxes, and it will remain 
so under the ownership of TEDC. When the property is conveyed for a commercial purpose it will be 
added back to the property tax rolls. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-7532-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CHAPTER 380 AGREEMENT WITH TEMPLE 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR CONVEYANCE OF 
AN APPROXIMATELY 39 ACRE PARCEL OF CITY-OWNED LAND 
LOCATED OFF OF RANGE ROAD; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, the Temple Economic Development Corporation has requested that the 

City convey to it approximately 39 acres of City-owned land located off of Range Road and 
depicted in the attached Exhibit A; 

 
Whereas, the property is to be used for business development purposes, which will 

include job creation and additional tax value - the prospective economic development on the 
site will be an industrial development; 

 
Whereas, this conveyance will be addressed through a Chapter 380 Development 

Agreement between the City and TEDC; 
 
Whereas, this property is exempt from property taxes and it will remain so under the 

ownership of TEDC – when the property is conveyed for a commercial purpose, the property 
will be then added to the property tax rolls; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 

interest to authorize this action. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 

Chapter 380 agreement with Temple Economic Development Corporation for conveyance 
of an approximately 39 acre parcel of City-owned land located off of Range Road. 

 
Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 

 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

11/06/14 
Item #4(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Ashley Williams, General Services Manager 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the following with respect to the 
procurement of natural gas for the compressed natural gas (CNG) fueling station: 

1. A renewal to the memorandum of agreement with Choice! Energy Services of Houston
for consulting services related to natural gas procurement; and

2. The City Manager or the Director of Finance to enter into a contract commencing
January 1, 2015, with the lowest responsible bidder for a period of 12 to 36 months for
the commodity cost of natural gas.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  In December, 2013, the City started utilizing 14 CNG-fueled refuse trucks and 
now utilizes 16 CNG trucks. The CNG trucks are fueled using the CNG fueling center constructed by 
the City during 2013 at 2625 E. Avenue H.  Natural gas is provided from an existing Atmos 
Distribution line near the station, of which the City pays a monthly line distribution fee for; however the 
natural gas commodity is procured through the open market.     

Staff desires to continue to use Choice! Energy Services of Houston to assist in the procurement of 
natural gas service to the CNG fueling station.  Choice! Energy Services was established in 1994 and 
has experience in procuring natural gas specifically for CNG fueling stations.  Choice! provides 
comprehensive risk assessment and long-term energy knowledge.  Under this agreement Choice! 
Energy Services will continue to complete the following tasks: 

1. Collect data, analyze and distribute to third party natural gas suppliers;
2. Review prices and contracts / negotiate contract terms and conditions;
3. Provide results of pricing effort and make recommendations to the City; and
4. Assist in contract execution and contract management.

Choice! Energy Services proposed fee is $0.15 per MMBtu (approximately $0.02 per gallon).  This 
fee is paid by the retail provider to Choice!.  



11/06/14 
Item #4(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

The City is currently under contract with Constellation NewEnergy-Gas Division, LLC for the purchase 
of a fixed quantity of 833 MMBtu’s per month at a rate of market plus 25¢ per MMBtu to cover 
Constellation’s overhead and profit.  Quantities needed above the 833 MMBtu’s are purchased at the 
then-current spot market price.  For the first nine (9) months of 2014, the City has used on average 
907 MMBtu’s per month at an average cost of $4.64 per MMBtu ($0.636 per gallon).    

With guidance from Choice!, staff is requesting that Council authorize a procurement process to 
secure pricing for the City for a contract commencing on January 1, 2015.  Pricing will be requested 
for periods ranging from as low as 12 and up to 36 months. 

The pricing of this commodity is typically only valid for a few days after the bids close.  Accordingly, it 
is necessary to obtain pre-authorization from Council to enter into a contract with a vendor.  Based on 
the bidding results, staff is requesting that Council give the City Manager or the Director of Finance 
the flexibility to negotiate a price and term that is most advantageous to the City. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Choice! Energy Services consulting fee will be paid by the contract retail provider 
directly to Choice!.  Based on an expected annual natural gas usage 1,100 MMBtu’s (8,030 gallons) 
per month, this calculates out to an annual embedded fee of approximately $1,980. 

The consulting fee and the commodity of natural gas are considered part of the cost components that 
are factored into Solid Waste’s FY 2015 fuel budget, account 110-2330-540-2115, account 110-2350-
540-2115, account 110-2360-540-2115, and account 110-2370-540-2115.     

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7533-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A RENEWAL TO THE MEMORANDUM OF 
AGREEMENT WITH CHOICE! ENERGY SERVICES OF HOUSTON, TEXAS 
AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OR DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE OF NATURAL 
GAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, in December 2013, the City started utilizing CNG-fueled refuse trucks which 
are fueled using the CNG fueling center located at 2625 East Avenue H which is provided from 
an existing Atmos Distribution line near the station, of which the City pays a monthly line 
distribution fee; 
 

Whereas, Choice! Energy Services’ proposed fee is $0.15 per MMBtu (approximately 
$0.02 per gallon) and is paid by the retail provider to Choice! - the City is currently under 
contract with Constellation NewEnergy-Gas Division, LLC for the purchase of a fixed quantity 
of 833 MMBtu’s per month at a rate of market plus 25¢ per MMBtu to cover Constellation’s 
overhead and profit; 
 

Whereas, quantities needed above the 833 MMBtu’s are purchased at the then current 
spot market price - for the first nine months of 2014, the City used an average of 907 MMBtu’s 
per month at an average cost of $4.64 per MMBtu ($0.636 per gallon); 
 

Whereas, staff recommends that Council authorize a procurement process to secure 
pricing for the City commencing January 1, 2015 – because the pricing of this commodity is 
typically only valid for a few days after the bids close, staff is requesting that Council give the 
City Manager or the Director of Finance the flexibility to negotiate a price and term that is most 
advantageous to the City; 
 
 Whereas, the consulting fee for Choice! Energy Services will be paid by the contract 
provider directly to Choice! And based on an expected annual natural gas usage of 1,100 
MMBtu’s (8,030 gallons) per month, this fee calculates out to be an annual embedded fee of 
approximately $1,983;  
 

Whereas, the consulting fee and the commodity of natural gas are considered part of the 
cost components that are factored into the fiscal year budget for Solid Waste and are available in 
Account No. 110-2330-540-2115, Account No. 110-2350-540-2115, Account No. 110-2360-
540-2115, and Account No. 110-2370-540-2115; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

1 
 



 
 

 
Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 

renewal to the Memorandum of Agreement with Choice! Energy Services of Houston, Texas,  
after approval as to form by the City Attorney, for consulting services related to the natural gas 
procurement. 
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager or the Director of Finance to enter 
into a contract commencing January 1, 2015, with the lowest responsible bidder for a period of 
12 to 36 months for the commodity cost of natural gas. 
 

Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

11/06/14 
Item #4(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider authorizing payment of the Consolidated Water Quality (CWQ) 
Assessment Fee to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) for operations of 
Temple’s wastewater treatment plants, in the cumulative amount of $94,722.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Recommend payment of TCEQ fees as presented in item discussion. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) requires wastewater 
permit holders within the State of Texas to pay a Consolidated Water Quality (CWQ) Fee annually. 
This fee provides for general revenue in support of TCEQ’s existing water-program activities. 

This year, the TCEQ CWQ fee associated with permitted operations of the Doshier WWTP and 
Temple-Belton WWTP is $41,586.00 and $53,136.00, respectively.  Payment of these fees are due 
within 30 days of receipt of the invoice, and must be paid promptly. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding is available in accounts 520-5521-535-2616 and 520-5522-535-2616 to 
fund the Consolidated Water Quality fee in the amount of $94,722.   

The City of Belton will be billed for their pro rata share of the TCEQ CWQ fee for the Temple-Belton 
WWTP in the amount of $11,245.70 based on flow at the plant which is currently 21.164%.--- 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7534-R 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF THE CONSOLIDATED WATER 
QUALITY (CWQ) ASSESSMENT FEE TO THE TEXAS COMMISSION 
ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (TCEQ) FOR OPERATIONS OF 
TEMPLE’S WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANTS, IN THE 
CUMULATIVE AMOUNT OF $94,722; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) requires 
wastewater permit holders within the State of Texas to pay a Consolidated Water Quality 
(CWQ) fee annually – this fee provides for general revenue in support of TCEQ’s existing 
water program activities; 
 
 Whereas, this year, the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Consolidated 
Water Quality fee is associated with permitted operations of the Doshier Wastewater 
Treatment Plant and the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant in the amount of 
$41,586 and $53,136, respectively; 
 
 Whereas, payment of these fees are due within 30 days of receipt of the invoice and 
must be paid promptly; 
 
 Whereas, funding is available in Account No. 520-5521-535-2616 and 520-5522-
535-2616 to fund the Consolidated Water Quality fee; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes payment of the Consolidated Water Quality 
Assessment Fee to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) for operations 
of Temple’s wastewater treatment plants, in the cumulative amount of $94,722. 
 

Part 2:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

11/06/14 
Item #4(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Ashley Williams, General Services Manager 
Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the application for grant funds to 
Oncor’s City Matching Grant Program, to complete lighting upgrades at the AMCOM hangar building 
at the Airport in the amount of $23,358 with up to $11,679 reimbursed to the City. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Oncor offers a matching grant program entitled “City Matching Grant Program.” 
The program provides cost-shared funding for municipalities to conduct lighting upgrade projects. 
The project scope involves upgrading 65 lighting fixtures at the AMOCOM hangar to replace 400 watt 
metal halide fixtures with 197 watt LED fixtures, a more efficient lighting option.  This project will also 
increase light output, improving the working conditions within the facility, bringing the working areas in 
compliance with OSHA standards. 
The total estimated cost for materials is $23,358, of which up to $11,679 will be reimbursed by the 
Oncor program.  Airport staff will install the lights. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding program guidelines provide for a 50/50 match.  It is anticipated that the 
City will provide an $11,679 cash match. The cash match will be funded from the Airport operating 
budget Buildings & Grounds account 110-3633-560-23-11. 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:  With this investment, the simple payback period of the entire project is 
estimated to be less than 2.5 years, with a first year savings of approximately $9,225.  Assuming an 
average life-cycle of ten-years, over the course of the upgrades the total avoided costs due to more 
efficient lighting use is approximately $92,250, based on operation costs alone. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-7535-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A GRANT 
APPLICATION TO ONCOR’S CITY MATCHING GRANT PROGRAM, 
TO COMPLETE LIGHTING UPGRADES AT THE AMCOM HANGAR 
BUILDING AT THE DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS 
REGIONAL AIRPORT, IN THE AMOUNT OF $23,358 WITH UP TO 
$11,679 BEING REIMBURSED TO THE CITY; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, Oncor offers a matching grant program entitled “City Matching Grant 
Program” which provides cost-shared funding for municipalities to conduct lighting upgrade 
projects; 

 
Whereas, this project involves upgrading 65 lighting fixtures at the AMOCOM 

hangar building at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport to replace 400 watt 
metal halide fixtures with 197 watt LED fixtures, a more efficient lighting option – this will 
increase light output, improving the working conditions within the facility, and bring the 
working areas in compliance with OSHA standards; 

 
Whereas, staff recommends authorizing a grant application to Oncor’s City Matching 

Grant Program, to complete lighting upgrades at the AMCOM hangar building at the 
Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport, in the amount of $23,358 with up to 
$11,679 reimbursed to the City; 

 
 Whereas, funding program guidelines provide for a 50/50 match and it is anticipated 
that the City will provide an $11,679 cash match for this grant - the cash match will be 
funded from the Airport operating budget Buildings & Grounds Account #: 110-3633-560-
2311; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the submission of a grant application to Oncor’s 
City Matching Grant Program, to complete lighting upgrades at the AMCOM hangar 
building at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport, in the amount of $23,358 
with up to $11,679 reimbursed to the City. 
 

Part 2: The City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute any documents 
which may be necessary to apply for this grant, and accepts any funds that may be received 
for this grant, after approval as to form by the City Attorney. 
 
  

1 
 



 
 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

11/06/14 
Item #4(M) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Leigh Gardner, Interim Library Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a grant application to the Texas 
State Library and Archives Commission, Grants to States Program from the Institute of Museum and 
Library Services for reimbursement of postage costs associated with the Interlibrary Loan program for 
an amount up to $7,992.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: This is a grant application for reimbursement of costs associated with the 
interlibrary loan program. Reimbursement is determined based on total lends and on net total lends 
(lends to other libraries in excess of what the Temple Public Library borrowed from other libraries). 
The majority of the cost to participate in the program is postage. The Texas State Library and 
Archives Commission has given notice to the Temple Public Library that the Temple Public Library 
may be eligible for reimbursement in the amount of $7,992.00. 

Approval of the resolution will allow the Library to make any actions necessary to receive the 
reimbursement amount as determined by the Texas State Library and Archives Commission.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  This grant a 100% reimbursement program with no City match required. If 
awarded, the grant the City will receive reimbursement in the amount of $7,992. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-7536-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A GRANT 
APPLICATION TO THE TEXAS STATE LIBRARY AND ARCHIVES 
COMMISSION, GRANTS TO STATES PROGRAM FOR 
REIMBURSEMENT OF POSTAGE COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
INTERLIBRARY LOAN PROGRAM, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$7,992; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Texas State Library and Archives Commission has given notice to the 
Temple Public Library that the library may be eligible for reimbursement of costs associated 
with the interlibrary loan program; 
 

Whereas, this grant application is determined based on total lends and on net total 
lends to other libraries and the majority of the costs to participate in this program is postage; 

 
Whereas, staff recommends authorizing a grant application to the Texas State Library 

and Archives Commission, Grants to States Program from the Institute of Museum and 
Library Services for reimbursement of postage costs associated with the Interlibrary Loan 
program in an amount not to exceed $7,992; 
 
 Whereas, this is a 100% grant reimbursement program with no City match required – 
if awarded, the City will receive reimbursement in the amount of $7,992; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the submission of a grant application to the 
Texas State Library and Archives Commission, Grants to States Program from the Institute 
of Museum and Library Services for reimbursement of postage costs associated with the 
Interlibrary Loan program in an amount not to exceed $7,992. 
 

Part 2: The City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute any documents 
which may be necessary to apply for this grant, and accepts any funds that may be received 
for this grant, after approval as to form by the City Attorney. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

1 
 



 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

11/06/14 
Item #4(N) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal year 
2014-2015. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: This item is to recommend various budget amendments, based on the adopted 
FY 2014-2015 budget. The amendments will involve transfers of funds between contingency 
accounts, department and fund levels. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The total amount of budget amendments is $467,633. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Amendments 
Resolution 



1

CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2015 BUDGET

November 6, 2014

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

110-XXXX-5XX-1XXX General Fund - Longevity 316,000$
110-1500-515-6536 Contingency - Longevity 316,000$

Allocate funds for Longevity program enhancements budgeted in FY 2015 
Operating and Capital Budgets.

110-1300-515-1115 Skilled 34,224$        
110-1300-515-1126 Longevity 409$             
110-1300-515-1220 Retirement 5,577$          
110-1300-515-1221 Medicare 509$             
110-1300-515-1222 Health Insurance 4,547$          
110-1300-515-1223 Worker Compensation 98$
110-1300-515-1224 Unemployment Insurance 270$             
110-1300-515-1225 Dental Insurance 89$
110-1300-515-1226 Basic Life Insurance 51$
110-1300-515-1227 AD&D Insurance 11$
110-1300-515-1228 Long Term Disability 82$
110-6010-513-1110 Administrative 34,224$
110-6010-513-1126 Longevity 409$            
110-6010-513-1220 Retirement 5,577$         
110-6010-513-1221 Medicare 509$            
110-6010-513-1222 Health Insurance 4,547$         
110-6010-513-1223 Worker Compensation 98$              
110-6010-513-1224 Unemployment Insurance 270$            
110-6010-513-1225 Dental Insurance 89$              
110-6010-513-1226 Basic Life Insurance 51$              
110-6010-513-1227 AD&D Insurance 11$              
110-6010-513-1228 Long Term Disability 82$              

Reallocation of funding for personnel changes approved by the City Manager 
with an effective date of September 26, 2014.

110-2032-521-2333 Repair & Maintenance / Auto & Equipment 4,793$          
110-0000-461-0554 Insurance Claims 4,793$   

Insurance proceeds to be allocated for repairs that were made to a motorcycle that
was damaged during an accident.

110-2011-521-2611 Contracted Services / Insurance & Bonds 37,557$        
110-6010-513-2611 Contracted Services / Insurance & Bonds 196$             
110-2210-522-2611 Contracted Services / Insurance & Bonds 10,000$
110-2320-540-2611 Contracted Services / Insurance & Bonds 4,000$         
110-2330-540-2611 Contracted Services / Insurance & Bonds 3,500$         
110-2350-540-2611 Contracted Services / Insurance & Bonds 6,953$         
110-2360-540-2611 Contracted Services / Insurance & Bonds 8,400$         
110-2370-540-2611 Contracted Services / Insurance & Bonds 4,900$   

To correct budgeted TML insurance allocation after final invoice was received.
The major allocation correction being made is due to an error of PD vehicles being
estimated.



2

CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2015 BUDGET

November 6, 2014

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

110-3500-552-2623 Contracted Services 2,720$          
110-0000-461-0554 Insurance Claims 2,720$         

Insurance proceeds to be allocated to repair damaged railing at 3rd and Central

110-3500-552-6332 101245 Park Fees - Walker Park 9,148$          
110-0000-461-0830 Developer Fees 9,148$         

Allocate funds from the escrowed developer fees from Prairie Crossing Subdivision 
for the addition of swings at Walker Park

260-2000-521-2113 Clothing & Uniform 5,594$          
260-2000-521-2211 Capital < $5,000 / Instruments/Special Equipment 12,258$        
260-0000-431-0163 Federal Grants 17,852$

Allocate funds from the FY 2013 Edward Bryne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 
for the purchase of Riot Helmets and Body Worn Video Cameras.

292-29XX-534-1xxx Drainage Fund - Longevity 5,500$          
292-2910-534-6536 Contingency - Longevity 5,500$         

Allocate funds for Longevity program enhancements budgeted in FY 2015 
Operating and Capital Budgets.

520-XXXX-535-1xxx Water Fund - Longevity 28,000$        
520-5000-535-6536 Contingency - Longevity 28,000$

Allocate funds for Longevity program enhancements budgeted in FY 2015 
Operating and Capital Budgets.

TOTAL AMENDMENTS 467,633$ 467,633$

GENERAL FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$             
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -
Carry forward from Prior Year -
Taken From Contingency -
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$

Beginning Judgments & Damages Contingency 40,070$
Added to Contingency Judgments & Damages from Council Contingency -
Taken From Judgments & Damages -
Net Balance of Judgments & Damages Contingency Account 40,070$

Beginning Compensation Contingency 988,000$
Added to Compensation Contingency -
Taken From Compensation Contingency (316,000)      
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 672,000$

Net Balance Council Contingency 712,070$

Beginning Balance Budget Sweep Contingency -$             
Added to Budget Sweep Contingency -
Taken From Budget Sweep -
Net Balance of Budget Sweep Contingency Account -$



3

CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2015 BUDGET

November 6, 2014

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

WATER & SEWER FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 28,902$
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -
Taken From Contingency -
Net Balance of Contingency Account 28,902$

Beginning Compensation Contingency 168,000$
Added to Compensation Contingency -
Taken From Compensation Contingency (28,000)        
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 140,000$

Net Balance Water & Sewer Fund Contingency 168,902$

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 26,720$
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -
Carry forward from Prior Year -
Taken From Contingency -
Net Balance of Contingency Account 26,720$

Beginning Compensation Contingency 36,000$
Added to Compensation Contingency -
Taken From Compensation Contingency -
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 36,000$

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency 62,720$

DRAINAGE FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$             
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -
Carry forward from Prior Year -
Taken From Contingency -
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$             

Beginning Compensation Contingency 26,000$
Added to Compensation Contingency -
Taken From Compensation Contingency (5,500)          
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 20,500$

Net Balance Drainage Fund Contingency 20,500$

FED/STATE GRANT FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$             
Carry forward from Prior Year -
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -
Taken From Contingency -
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$             



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7537-R 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE 
2014-2015 CITY BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, on the 28th day of August, 2014, the City Council approved a budget 
for the 2014-2015 fiscal year; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council deems it in the public interest to make certain 
amendments to the 2014-2015 City Budget. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council approves amending the 2014-2015 City Budget by 
adopting the budget amendments which are more fully described in Exhibit ‘A,’ 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
  
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
             

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

11/06/14 
Item #4(O) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  THIRD & FINAL READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing a five 
year franchise agreement with Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a AmeriStat Ambulance for non-emergency 
ambulance transfer services. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance as presented in item description, on third and final 
reading. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a AmeriStat Ambulance (“Ameristat Ambulance”) has 
submitted a franchise agreement application for non-emergency ambulance transfer services within 
the city limits.  Under Chapter 5 of the City Code of Ordinances, any interested transfer service must 
submit an application for franchise.  The City currently has franchise agreements with Acadian and 
Scott and White EMS for non-emergency ambulance transfer services as well as a contract with Scott 
and White EMS for emergency ambulance transfer services. 

Ameristat Ambulance wishes to offer non-emergency ambulance transfer services to health care 
providers, including skilled nursing facilities, assisted living facilities, hospice agencies and other 
related entities.  This would include transports from facilities to hospitals, clinics, diagnostic centers, 
physician offices and other locations under circumstances that do not constitute an emergency.   

Ameristat Ambulance has leased and is proposing to operate out of a station located at 401A 
Cottingham Drive in Temple.  The station will be staffed with one MICU/CCT Ambulance with one 
EMT and one Paramedic 24 fours a day 7 days a week.   

AmeriStat Ambulance coverage area is Georgetown, Round Rock, Cedar Park, Pflugerville, Belton, 
Temple, Hutto, Taylor and Flatonia (Williamson, Travis, Bastrop, Milam, Bell, Lee, and Burnet 
County).  They are also in the process of obtaining a service agreement to do ambulance 
transportation for Temple VA Hospital.  If the franchise is approved, AmeriStat will then begin 
broadening their marketing efforts to area care facilities and hospitals for business. 

City staff spoke with Kenny Schnell, EMS Director for Williamson County regarding his opinion and 
experiences with AmeriStat Ambulance.  AmeriStat Ambulance serves Williamson County as a non-
emergency ambulance service provider.  Mr. Schnell spoke favorably of AmeriStat Ambulance,  



11/06/14 
Item #4(O) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

stating that there are open lines of communication between the County EMS and AmeriStat 
Ambulance, that AmeriStat Ambulance is focused on patient care and that he respects them for the 
quality of service they provide. 

The City will receive a franchise fee in return for the right to use the public streets and right of way for 
non-emergency ambulance transfer service.  Ameristat Ambulance will pay the city three and one-half 
(3 ½%) of the total amount billed for ambulance service fees and other income derived from the 
operation of the ambulance service within the City.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  By ordinance, non-emergency ambulance transfer services franchisees pay the 
City 3 ½% of the total amount billed per year.  Franchise fees received are deposited into account 
110-0000-413-0936. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 



 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4686 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, GRANTING TO SERENITY EMS, LLC D/B/A AMERISTAT 
AMBULANCE A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR FIVE YEARS TO 
OPERATE AND MAINTAIN A NON-EMERGENCY AMBULANCE 
TRANSFER SERVICE UPON THE PUBLIC STREETS AND HIGHWAYS OF 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF 
THE CONSTITUTION AND LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, THE CITY 
CHARTER, AND CHAPTER 5 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE ; DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

                           
 

 Whereas, Article III, Chapter 5 of the City Code, requires that a person or persons 
desiring to provide non-emergency ambulance transfer services on the streets of the City of 
Temple obtain a franchise, under conditions set forth therein; 
 
 Whereas, Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a Ameristat Ambulance (“Ameristat Ambulance”) has 
requested a franchise for a non-exclusive, non-emergency transfer service within the City of 
Temple; 
 
 Whereas, Ameristat Ambulance wishes to offer non-emergency ambulance transfer 
services to health care providers, including skilled nursing facilities, assisted living facilities, 
hospice agencies and other related entities - this would include transports from facilities to 
hospitals, clinics, diagnostic centers, physician offices and other locations under circumstances 
that do not constitute an emergency;   
 
  Whereas, Ameristat Ambulance has leased, and is proposing to operate out of, a station 
located at 401A Cottingham Drive in Temple - the station will be staffed with one MICU/CCT 
Ambulance with one EMT and one Paramedic 24 hours a day, 7 days a week; 
 
 Whereas, the City will receive a franchise fee of three and one-half (3 ½%) of the total 
amount billed for ambulance service fees and other income derived from the operation of the 
ambulance service within the City from AmeriStat Ambulance in return for the right to use the 
public streets and rights of way for non-emergency ambulance transfer service.   
 
 Whereas, franchise fees received will be deposited into account 110-0000-413-0936; and 
 

Whereas, Ameristat Ambulance has established to the satisfaction of the City Council by 
clear, cogent and convincing evidence that public convenience and necessity will be served by 
the granting of said franchise. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 
 1 



 
Part 1: A non-exclusive franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency ambulance 

transfer service is granted to Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a AmeriStat Ambulance pursuant to 
Chapter 5 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, as amended, and the Charter of the 
City of Temple, as provided herein. 
 

Part 2: Definitions. 
 

As used in this ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the meaning ascribed 
in this section: 
 

(a) City shall mean the City of Temple, a municipal corporation of the State of Texas, 
situated in Bell County; the words in the City or any similar reference to the territorial limits of 
the City of Temple, Texas, shall mean the area within the corporate limits of the City of Temple, 
Texas, as they now exist or as they may hereafter be lawfully modified or extended. 
 

(b) Company, Transfer Service Franchise Holder, as used herein, unless the context clearly 
indicates otherwise, shall mean AmeriStat Ambulance, or its legally approved successors and 
assigns. 
 

(c) Ambulance or Transfer Service shall mean any motor vehicle used, designed, redesigned 
or constructed and equipped for the transportation of sick or injured persons, which vehicles for 
the purposes of this ordinance shall be of the classification of basic life support vehicle or higher, 
according to the definitions and standards of the City of Temple, Texas or the Bureau of 
Emergency Management of the Texas Department of Health. 
 

(d) Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Service means a response made by a transfer 
vehicle or ambulance for the transportation of individuals to or from a medical facility, a nursing 
home or residence under circumstances which do not constitute an emergency. 
 

(e) Emergency is any circumstance that calls for an immediate action and which the element 
of time in transporting the sick, wounded or injured for medical treatment at an emergency room 
or a facility providing emergency medical care is or may be essential to the health or life of any 
person. Such circumstances include, but are not limited to, general accidents, traffic accidents 
and acts of violence resulting in personal injury, and sudden illness. 
 

(f) All other words, terms or phrases shall have the meaning assigned to them by Chapter 5 of 
the City Code, to the extent that such words, terms or phrases have not been assigned other 
meanings by Chapter 773 of the Texas Health and Safety Code; as amended, or the regulations of 
the Bureau of Emergency Management of the Texas Department of Health, in which case those 
assigned meanings shall prevail. In the absence of an assigned meaning by the above-referenced 
ordinance, statute, or regulations of the Bureau, the meanings of such words, terms and phrases 
shall have the ordinary meanings applied at law generally or by common usage in the English 
language. 
 

 
 2 



 
Part 3: Notice and Extent of Grant. 

 
The City grants the non-exclusive right and authority to operate and maintain ambulances 

solely for non-emergency ambulance transfer service of persons upon the public streets and 
highways of the City of Temple, Texas, for a term ending on November 5, 2019, to Company in 
consideration of the payment of a franchise fee as provided in Part 5 of this ordinance. 
 

Part 4: Standards and Requirements for Personnel, Vehicles and Equipment. 
 

The Company shall comply with all standards and requirements for personnel, vehicles and 
equipment as enumerated in Chapter 5 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple. 
 

Part 5: Payment to the City Required; Franchise Fee. 
 

(a) The transfer service franchise holder shall, during the life of said franchise, pay to the 
City of Temple at the Office of the Director of Finance in lawful money of the United States, 
three and one-half (3 ½%) percent of the total amount billed for the transfer service fees and 
other income derived from the operation of the transfer service, which said remittance shall be 
made monthly on or before the tenth day of each calendar month for the preceding calendar 
month. The compensation provided for in this section shall be in lieu of any other fees or charges 
imposed by any other ordinance now or hereafter in force during the life hereof, but shall not 
release the grantee from the payment of ad valorem taxes levied, or to be levied, on property of 
its own. 
 

(b) It shall be the duty of the franchise holder to file with the Director of Finance a sworn 
statement for each calendar quarter showing the total amount billed for the preceding three (3) 
months which statement shall be filed within ten (10) days following the end of the third month. 
The franchise holder herein shall be required to install and adequately keep a system of 
bookkeeping to be approved by the Director of Finance, which books shall be subject to 
inspections of the governing body of the City of Temple and such person or persons as the City 
may designate, or either of them, so as to enable the City of Temple to check the correctness of 
the accounts kept and to compute fairly and accurately the amount billed that may be due to the 
City. 
 

Part 6: Rates. 
 

(a)  The City Council hereby expressly reserves the right, power, and authority to fully 
regulate and fix, by resolution, the rates and charges for the services of the Company to 
its customers, fully reserving to the City Council all the rights, powers, privileges, and 
immunities, subject to the duties, limitations and responsibilities which the Constitution, 
the laws of the State, and the Charter confer upon the City. 

 
(b)  Company may from time to time propose changes in the general rates by filing an 

application with the City Secretary for consideration of the City Council. Within a 
reasonable time consistent with law, the City Council shall afford Company a fair hearing 

 
 3 



with reference to the application and shall either approve or disapprove the proposed 
changes or make such order as may be reasonable. 

 
Part 7: Liability Insurance Required. 

 
No transfer vehicle shall be operated on the public streets of the City, unless the applicant 

provides evidence to the City that he has in full force and effect a public liability insurance 
policy on that transfer vehicle, such insurance policy to be issued by an insurance company 
licensed to do business in the State of Texas. Such insurance policy shall: 
 

(a) provide liability coverage for each vehicle of not less than two hundred and fifty thousand 
dollars ($250,000) per person, or five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) per occurrence 
for personal injury or death, and one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) for property 
damage; 

 
(b) name the City of Temple as an additional insured, and provide a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of the City; 

 
(c) not contain a passenger liability exclusion; and 

 
(d) provide for at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation to the City. 

 
Part 8: Conditions of Franchise Granted. 

 
The rights, powers and authority herein granted are granted subject to the Constitution and 

laws of the State of Texas, the Charter of the City of Temple, and where not provided herein, the 
ordinances and codes of the City of Temple as same now exist or may hereafter be amended so 
as to constitute reasonable regulations protecting the health, safety and welfare to insure safe, 
efficient and continuous non-emergency ambulance transfer service, all of which enumerated 
provisions are incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof as fully as though the 
same had been copied herein verbatim. 

 
Part 9: Manner of Giving Notice. 

 
Notice to Company may be given by leaving a written copy thereof at the principal office of 

Company during ordinary business hours. Notice to the City may be given by leaving a written 
copy thereof at the Office of the Director of Finance during ordinary business hours. 
 

Part 10: Public Convenience and Necessity. 
 

Company has established by clear, cogent and convincing evidence and the City Council has 
so found and determined that the present and future public convenience and necessity require the 
operations here authorized to be performed by Company and the public convenience and 
necessity will be served by the granting of this franchise. 
 

Part 11: Performance Bond and Revocation Clause. 

 
 4 



 
(a) The transfer service franchise holder shall establish a Ten Thousand Dollar ($10,000) 

performance bond. The purpose of this bond is to recover costs to the City of Temple for 
accepting and administering the applications for a transfer service franchise in the event the 
franchise is revoked. 
 

(b) If the transfer service franchise holder violates any provision or standard of this ordinance 
or Chapter 5 of the City Code the franchise will be subject to revocation by the City Council of 
the City of Temple and forfeiture of the performance bond. 
 

Part 12: This franchise shall become effective as provided in Article 10, Section 10.3 of the 
Charter of the City of Temple, if Company shall have filed its written acceptance of the franchise 
within thirty (30) days after the final passage and approval of this ordinance. 
 

Part 13: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 
preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative 
provisions hereof. 
 

Part 14: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of 
the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this 
end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 15: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading on the 2nd day of October, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of October, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Third and Final Reading and Public Hearing on the 6th day 
of November, 2014. 

 
             THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
                           
             DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                          
Lacy Borgeson         Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary          City Attorney 

 
 5 



 
 Agreement of Franchisee 
 
 
TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS: 
 
 

The franchisee, Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a AmeriStat Ambulance, acting by and through 
its duly authorized and empowered officer, hereby accepts the terms and conditions of Ordinance 
No. ____________ granting a non-exclusive franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency 
ambulance transfer service upon the public streets and highways of the City of Temple. 
 

SIGNED this _______ day of __________________, 2014. 
 
 
    SERENITY EMS, LLC D/B/A AMERISTAT   

     AMBULANCE 
 
 

 
           _____ 
    By:  

 
 6 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

11/06/14 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING & PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 
establishing the City’s participation in the Texas Enterprise Zone Program pursuant to Texas 
Enterprise Zone Act, Chapter 2303, Texas Government Code, providing tax incentives, designating a 
liaison for communication with interested parties, and nominating Artco-Bell Corporation to the office 
of the Governor Economic Development & Tourism through the Economic Development Bank as a 
qualified enterprise project. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt ordinance as presented in item description, on first reading. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The City of Temple desires to create the proper economic and social environment 
to induce the investment of private resources in productive business enterprises and to provide 
employment to residents from an enterprise zone.  Certain local incentives are available to Artco-Bell 
Corporation as a qualified business that will create a higher level of employment, economic activity 
and stability. 

Artco-Bell estimates approximately $9 million will be invested in the expansion, mostly for the 
remodeling and upgrading of the facility.  There are approximately 310 employees currently employed 
with Artco-Bell, with an additional 35-75 workers being considered.  

Pursuant to Chapter 2303, Subchapter F of the Act, Artco-Bell Corporation has applied to the City for 
designation as an enterprise project. Artco-Bell Corporation is a “qualified business” under Section 
2303.402 of the Act since it will be engaged in the active conduct of a trade or business at a qualified 
business site within the governing body’s jurisdiction, located outside of an enterprise zone and at 
least thirty-five percent (35%) of the business’ new employees will be residents of an enterprise zone 
or economically disadvantaged individuals. 

The enterprise project shall take effect on the date of designation of the enterprise project by EDT 
and terminate on September 2, 2019. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  If approved, Artco-Bell Corporation expansion project is expected to result in a $9 
million capital investment with job retention of 310 full-time employees with an additional 35-75 
workers being considered. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4691 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE TEXAS 
ENTERPRISE ZONE PROGRAM PURSUANT TO THE TEXAS ENTERPRISE 
ZONE ACT, CHAPTER 2303, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE (ACT), 
PROVIDING TAX INCENTIVES, DESIGNATING A LIAISON FOR 
COMMUNICATION WITH INTERESTED PARTIES, AND NOMINATING 
ARTCO-BELL CORPORATION TO THE OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & TOURISM THROUGH THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT BANK AS AN ENTERPRISE PROJECT; AND PROVIDING 
AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas desires to create the proper 
economic and social environment to induce the investment of private resources in productive 
business enterprises and to provide employment to residents from an enterprise zone;  

 
Whereas, the project or activity is not located in an area designated as an enterprise zone; 

and  

Whereas, pursuant to Chapter 2303, Subchapter F of the Act, Artco-Bell Corporation has 
applied to the City for designation as an enterprise project;  

Whereas, at the election of City Council, certain local incentives are available to 
Artco-Bell Corporation as a qualified business that will create a higher level of employment, 
economic activity and stability; and 

Whereas, a public hearing to consider this ordinance was held by the City Council on 
November 6, 2014.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS THAT: 

 Part 1:  The City Council nominates Artco-Bell Corporation for enterprise project status. 

 Part 2:  That the following local incentives, at the election of the City Council, are or will 
be made available to the nominated project or activity of the qualified business: 

a) The City may establish a reinvestment zone and abate taxes on the increase in value of 
real property improvements and eligible personal property for up to 10 years for 
qualifying projects under the requirements of the City’s Tax Abatement Policy. The 
level of abatement shall be based upon capital investment, and the extent to which the 
business receiving the abatement creates jobs for qualified employees, in accordance 
with the Tax Abatement Policy and with qualified employee being defined by the Act. 
 

b) The City may provide business and industrial development services, including: 
1)   Grants to eligible companies through the City’s Economic     

  Development Corporation; 

1 
 



 
2)   Local sales tax refund; 
3)   Chapter 380 tax rebates for qualifying projects that  

 significantly enhance the City’s tax base as provided in the  
  City’s policy; 

4)   Establishment of a Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone; 
5)   Creation   of   stream-lined   permitting   and   problem     

  resolution   centers   or ombudsmen;  
6)   Promotion and marketing services;  
7)   Other tax deferrals, tax refunds or tax incentives;  
8)    Low-interest loans for business; 
9)   Use of surplus school buildings or other underutilized publicly  

   owned facilities as small-business incubators; or 
10) Provision of publicly owned land for development purposes. 

 
c) The City may provide regulatory relief to businesses, including: 

1)   Zoning changes or variances;  
2)   Exemptions from unnecessary building code requirements,  

  impact fees, or inspection fees; or 
3)   Streamlined permitting. 

 
d) The City may provide enhanced municipal services to businesses, including: 

1)   Improved police and fire protection; or 
2)   Institution of community crime prevention programs; or 
3)   Special public transportation routes or reduced fares. 

 
e) The City may provide improvements in community facilities, including: 

1)   Capital improvements in water and sewer facilities; 
2)   Road repair; 
3)   Creation or improvement of parks; or 
4)   Creation of other venues, such as museums, conference centers, etc. 

 
f) The City may provide improvements to housing, including: 

1)   Low-interest loans for housing rehabilitation, improvement, or  
  new construction; or 

2)   Transfer of abandoned housing to individuals or community  
  groups.  

  
g) The City, in partnership with other regional entities, may provide job training and 
employment services to businesses, including: 

1)   Job training and employment services; 
2)   Retraining programs; 
3)   Literacy and employment skills programs; 
4)   Vocational education; or 

  5)   Customized job training. 
 
Part 3: That any enterprise zone areas created within the City are reinvestment zones in 

accordance with the Texas Tax Code, Chapter 312. 
 

2 
 



 

Part 4: That it directs and designates the Temple Economic Development Corporation’s 
President as the City’s liaison to communicate and negotiate with the Governor of Economic 
Development and Tourism (EDT) through the Economic Development Bank and enterprise 
project(s) and to oversee zone activities and communications with qualified businesses and other 
entities in an enterprise zone or affected by an enterprise project. 

Part 5: That it finds that Artco-Bell Corporation meets the criteria for designation as an 
enterprise project under Chapter 2303, Subchapter F of the Act on the following grounds: 

a) Artco-Bell Corporation is a “qualified business” under Section 2303.402 of the Act since 
it will be engaged in the active conduct of a trade or business at a qualified business site 
within the governing body’s jurisdiction, located outside of an enterprise zone and at 
least thirty-five percent (35%) of the business’ new employees will be residents of an 
enterprise zone or economically disadvantaged individuals; and 
 

b) There has been and will continue to be a high level of cooperation between public, 
private, and neighborhood entities in the area; and 
 

c) The designation of Artco-Bell Corporation as an enterprise project will contribute 
significantly to the achievement of the plans of the City for development and 
revitalization of the area. 

 
Part 6: The enterprise project shall take effect on the date of designation of the enterprise 

project by EDT and terminate on September 2, 2019. 

Part 7:   That the provisions of this ordinance are severable and the invalidity of any 
part of this ordinance will not affect the validity of the remainder of the ordinance. 

Part 8: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 6th day of 
November, 2014. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 20th day of November, 2014. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
_______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

  ______________________________        
Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary City Attorney 

3 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

11/06/14 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 7 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Mark Baker, Planner 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-37: Consider adopting an 
ordinance to  take action on a rezoning from Urban Estate District (UE) to Single Family-One District 
(SF-1) on 61.137 +/- acres, being a tract of land in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract  No. 5, Bell 
County, Texas, located at 5105 Charter Oak Drive. 

UPDATE:  At its October 2, 2014 meeting, at the request of the applicant, the City Council voted 
unanimously to table the public hearing for the above referenced project to November 6, 2014.  The 
requested tabling was to accommodate the preparation of a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) which is 
anticipated to be completed prior to that date. It will be forwarded to City Council members as soon as 
it is received and reviewed by City staff. 

Since Charter Oak Drive (FM 817), is TxDot right-of-way, the TIA was initially requested by State. 
However, there was considerable discussion at the September 15, 2014, Planning & Zoning 
Commission meeting regarding traffic impacts on Charter Oak Drive.   

As a result of that discussion, staff suggested to the applicant that the TIA should be undertaken 
sooner than later.  The TIA would address projected traffic volumes as a result of the proposed 184 
lots. The analysis would also include discussion and recommendations for turning lanes as well as for 
potential signalization of intersections. It was suggested that the analysis discuss, compare and 
contrast the potential densities resulting from the existing Urban Estate (UE) with the proposed 
Single-Family-1 (SF-1) zoning districts. The time needed to prepare a TIA would also allow the 
applicant an opportunity to meet with area residents.  Postponing the October 2nd public hearing to 
November 6th would allow time for this to be accomplished.   

On October 29, 2014, City Planning staff received a draft copy of the completed TIA.   While the 
technical preparation of the TIA has been completed, it is understood by staff that the draft watermark 
indicates that outside reviewing agencies such as TxDot have not completed their individual reviews. 
Public Works staff & TxDot will require a signed and sealed un-watermarked final version of the TIA in 
order to complete their review.  Planning staff has talked with TxDot and their final review will not be 
completed by the November 6, 2014 meeting. 



11/06/14 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 7 

The TIA was prepared by Alliance Transportation Group of Austin, Texas with the following 
conclusion as follows: 

“The proposed Olde Towne Development located along Charter Oak Drive in Temple, Texas 
and its interaction with the surrounding roadway network have been analyzed for build-out 
(2015) conditions.  The intersection analysis performed in this study indicate that background 
and site traffic will be accommodated within the existing roadway network and meet acceptable 
Levels of Service. 

According to the Roadway Design Manual, a left-turn lane may be considered for the 
development.  However, Charter Oaks Drive is listed in the 2040 KTMPO MTP as a four-lane 
roadway.  Due to the plan for future expansion and existing geometric constraints, we 
recommend a left-turn lane not be constructed at this time.” 

As a courtesy, staff has notified, both by phone and/or email, the original listing of neighbors and 
neighborhood contacts regarding the rescheduling of the public hearing to the November 6, 2014 City 
Council meeting. 

Staff has received, two additional returned property owner notices,  a neighborhood petition along 
with some neighborhood history as well as the draft TIA which have been attached  as “NEW”.  All 
other attachments and documentation were distributed with the initial City Council staff report for the 
October 2, 2014 City Council meeting. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At its September  15, 2014 meeting, 
The Planning & Zoning Commission voted 3 in favor to 6 against staff’s recommendation to approve, 
resulting in a recommendation of denial of the requested rezone from “UE” to “SF-1” 

Per UDC Section 2.4.4 – “A minimum 75 percent vote of all the members of the City Council is 
required to overrule a recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Commission that a proposed 
Zoning District Map Amendment be denied.” 

During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting, public discussion centered on the following: 

1. Increased traffic,
2. Quality of life,
3. Impacts to historic resources (e.g. cemetery, structures),
4. Traffic enforcement,
5. Public safety  and,
6. Density



11/06/14 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 7 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  While the proposed SF-1 zoning is not consistent with current FLUP 
designation of Agriculture / Rural, based on the following discussion, staff still recommends approval 
for a rezone from UE to SF-1 for the following reasons: 

1. The requested rezone is consistent with the anticipated growth of the area which would
support higher density residential development of the surrounding area which is
consistent with the Suburban Ranch designation of the FLUP;

2. The request is consistent with SF-1 zoning established in the immediate area, across
from Charter Oak Drive;

3. The request is in partial compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan; and
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.

ITEM SUMMARY:  According to the City of Temple Comprehensive Plan / FLUP, the subject 
property, being a total 61.137 +/- acres (Exhibit A), is within the Agricultural/Rural designation.  In 
August 1999, per Ordinance 1999-2651, a City initiated rezoning occurred from General Retail (GR) 
to the current Urban Estate (UE). 

Although the subject property as SF-1 is anticipated to be developed with detached single-family 
residences, there are a number of uses that are permitted by right.  Those uses include but are not 
limited to: 

Residential uses  Nonresidential uses 
Family or Group Home Farm or Ranch 
Industrialized Housing  Place of Worship 
Child Care – Family Home Fire Station 

Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, duplexes and 
apartments. All commercial and industrial uses are prohibited, except these uses allowed by an 
approved conditional use permit (temporary asphalt concrete batching plants, a petroleum or gas well 
or a cemetery, crematory or mausoleum). 

SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Agriculture/ Rural &    UE   Undeveloped 
North    Suburban Residential GR, UE, SF-1 & MH  Scattered SF Uses  
South  Suburban Commercial LI, GR           BNSF Railroad, I-35, scattered 

Commercial & Industrial Uses  
East Agriculture/Rural UE, GR  Scattered SF Uses on Acreage 
West Agriculture/Rural GR, ETJ Undeveloped 



11/06/14 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 7 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Partial 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan Partial 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The applicant proposes 61.137 +/- acres for single-family residential development. According to the 
Comprehensive Plan, “The Agricultural/Rural designation is intended for those areas within the City 
limits that do not yet have adequate public facilities and services and therefore, may have on-site 
utilities.  This designation is also meant to protect areas in active farm and/or ranch use.” For 
additional discussion, see availability of Public Facilities section of this report.  The proposed rezone 
to SF-1 is not consistent with the Agricultural/Rural designation.  While staff analysis places a 
significant weight on consistency to the FLUP, surrounding uses, existing zoning and anticipated 
development of the subject property is significantly considered during the analysis.  In this case, while 
the proposed rezone from UE to SF-1 proposes a higher density of residential development, it is 
consistent with the anticipated growth of the surrounding area which would be supported by the 
Suburban Residential FLUP designation.  The Suburban Residential designation is established 
immediately to the north across Charter Oak Drive and it would be expected the Suburban 
Residential FLUP designation would be expanded to accommodate future growth.  

Initially, the area north of Charter Oak was platted as the Riverside Park Addition subdivision in 1952 
while in unincorporated Bell County. This area was later part of land acquisition for the water 
treatment plant in the City in 1999.  The remaining platted lots represent the only SF-1 zoned lots in 
the immediate area. Staff has identified that these lots range from 8,364 square feet to over one acre 
in size.  

Under the current UE zoning, with a minimum 22,500 square footage per lot, staff has estimated that 
approximately 90 to 100 homes can be constructed under the current “UE” zoning.  The number of 
homes takes into account includes a deduction of land area for right-of-way but does not include land 
deducted for parkland or other tracts for drainage.  

On the other hand, under the proposed SF-1, lots are required to have a minimum 7,500 square feet. 
In anticipation of the SF-1 zoning by the property owner, staff has met on a preliminary basis with the 
applicant and been provided with a draft of the Preliminary Master Plat (attached) containing 184 lots. 
The lots range from 8,866 square feet to 32,585 square feet in area. The plat has not been formally 
submitted for review or has been evaluated by the Design Review Committee.  At some point in the  



11/06/14 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 7 

future, it can be anticipated that the plat will be submitted and brought forward to the Planning & 
Zoning Commission for review and consideration. 

In conclusion, while the proposed rezone is not consistent with the FLUP, the proposal is consistent 
with adjacent FLUP designation and the anticipated growth and development of the area.  If the City 
Council approves the rezone, the FLUP will need to be updated. 

Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The property has frontage along Charter Oak Drive. The Thoroughfare Plan (see attached) identifies 
Charter Oak Drive as a proposed minor arterial. 

Based on a factor of 9.52 total trips per day per residential dwelling, it can be anticipated that an 
additional 1,752 trips per day will be introduced to Charter Oak Drive.   

The factor is based on an industry-accepted factor and modified by calculations derived from the 
Institute of Traffic Engineers Trip Generation Manual 9th Edition for detached single-family homes. 
The resulting projected figure is meant to provide general insight to the traffic volume and is not 
meant to be construed as part of a traffic impact analysis by staff.  While a detailed traffic impact 
analysis is not required, staff understands from the applicant that an analysis will be prepared for this 
development.   

According to the Comprehensive Plan, Functional Classification Criteria – Table 5A.1, a resulting 
traffic volume per day (VPD) of 5,000 to 30,000 receives a roadway classification of minor arterial. 
The resulting VPD is consistent with the roadway classification of Charter Oak Drive     

It should be further noted that while the traffic counts shown are for Charter Oak Drive, the counts 
were taken approximately 1.6 miles northeast of the site at Charter Oak Drive and Profit Place. 
Furthermore the counts were taken in a direction leading away from the project site.  There is no data 
available on Charter Oak Drive and the immediate project site. 

Additional right-of-way dedications and improvements can be anticipated and triggered with the 
platting process. No Transportation Capital Improvement Plan (TCIP) projects are listed within the 
immediate area funded through 2019.  Per UDC Sec. 8.5.1(Perimeter Streets), the developer will be 
responsible at the platting stage for right-of-way dedication for adjacent street improvements. 

In the following Infrastructure Adequacy Table, the existing and UDC required right-of-way conditions 
for Charter Oak Drive as well as existing traffic count information collected by the City at a site closest 
to the project site are shown. 



Based on this discussion and the above table, it can be understood that the proposed development 
regardless of the current or proposed density is anticipated to increase traffic.  It should be noted that 
according to the accident records from the City of Temple Police Department, there were 21 reported 
auto accidents alone between January 1, 2010 and Sept 16, 2014 in the 4500 to the 5800 block of 
Charter Oak Drive. This is in the immediate area of the project site frontage and equates 
approximately 0.37 accidents per month or about 1 accident per every 3 months (quarter of a year).   

In conclusion, While Charter Oak Drive is in-place; it is substandard to meet the 184 anticipated 
residential lots and the additional traffic generation.  Improvements to Charter Oak Drive will result 
from future platting however measures should be taken as early as possible to address the 
anticipated impacts.  There are no TCIP projects listed for the foreseeable future.   

Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
While water is available through an 18” waterline that crosses the property and an 8” water line in 
Charter Oak Drive, currently there is no sewer line immediately available to the subject property.  The 
nearest line is approximately 6,000 feet to the north east.  Due to the size of the proposed lots, septic 
systems would not be permitted and sewer line extension will be necessary.  While there are several 
agreements to extend the sewer line in process between the property owner and the City of Temple 
and the extension is currently listed on the CIP project list, the agreement(s) however, have not been 
finalized. Issues related to the sewer line extension and the corresponding agreements will be 
addressed during the preliminary plat process. 

Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
According to the Trails Master Plan Map, a City-Wide Spine Trail has been identified along Charter 
Oak Drive. Charter Oak Drive as a minor arterial requires minimum 6’ sidewalks. Trails and sidewalks 
will be addressed at the platting stage of review. 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Standard residential setbacks in the SF-1 district are: 

Min Lot Size  7,500 S.F   
Min Lot Width 60’  
Min Lot Depth 100’ 
Front   25’  
Side       6’ Min (10% of lot width) 

5,000 - 30,000 Vehicles Per Day (T-Fare Sec. 5A-1) Minor Arterial
Current ROW Width / Pavement Width 54' +/-   ROW Width    32' +/- Pavement Width
UDC Required ROW Width / Pavment Width 70'   ROW Width            49'   Pavement Width
Dedication Anticipated (1/2 Street Balance) 8 Feet
Daily Traffic Count 2013  (3300 Blk of Charter Oak) 7742 Daily Trips
Daily Traffic Count 2014  (3300 Blk of Charter Oak) 7723 Daily Trips
Projected Daily Traffic Volume (184 Lots) (*) 1752 Daily Trips

(*) Projected daily traffic generated is based on an average of 9.52 daily trips per residence & is 
based on factors from the Institute of Traffic Engineers Trip Generation Manual 9th Ed.

Infrastructure Adequacy Table



11/06/14 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 7 of 7 

Side (corner) 15’ 
Rear  10’ 

Per UDC Section 8.2.3, sidewalks are required on both sides of the road for arterial streets. The 
sidewalk will be installed at the time of development, and will be noted on the future plat.   

A residential access drive is prohibited onto arterial streets (UDC Section 7.2.4A). 

PUBLIC NOTICE: Thirteen notices, for the public hearing were sent out to property owners within 
200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance. As of Tuesday October 
28, 2014 at 12:00 PM, four notices for disapproval and four notices for approval have been received. 
In addition, a petition, containing approximately 86 signatures from area residents and background 
information about the Charter Oak and history of the immediate area have been received.  Staff has 
also received several phone calls from residents outside of the notification area with concerns about 
increased traffic on Charter Oak Drive and overall changes to quality of life. 

The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on September 4, 2014, in accordance with state 
law and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
NEW - Draft Traffic Impact Analysis (dated as received October 29, 2014) 
NEW - Returned Property Owner Notice (Booker Properties - Received after October 2, 2014
NEW - Returned Property Owner Notice (Knucklehead Properties – Received prior to Oct 2, 2014
NEW - Petition & Historical Information of the Charter Oak & Neighborhood - Received prior to Oct 2, 

      2014 
Table Request (email dated 09-24-2014)  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Land Title Survey (Exhibit A) 
Aerial Map 
Zoning and Location Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Localized area of the Thoroughfare Plan 
Localized area of the Trails Plan 
Utility Map 
Draft Preliminary Master Plat 
Notification Map 
Returned Adjacent Property Notices (Provided prior to October 2, 2014) 
Ordinance  

















































































































Site & Surrounding Property Photos 

Site:  Undeveloped (UE) 

Site:  Undeveloped (Looking Across Charter Oak & Charter Oak Loop (UE) 



East:  Scattered SF Uses on Acreage (UE & GR) 

West:  Undeveloped (Google Earth Image)(GR & ETJ) 



North: Scattered SF Residences on Acreage (UE, GR, SF-1 & MH)

North: (Looking from Charter Oak Loop) Scattered SF Uses  
(UE, GR, SF-1 & MH)



North: (Aerial) Scattered SF Uses (GR, UE, SF-1 & MH)

South:  (Looking across Site) BNSF Railroad, I-35 & Scattered Commercial &
Industrial Uses (LI, GR) 



South:  (Aerial) BNSF Railroad, I-35 & Scattered Commercial and Industrial Uses 
(LI, GR)  





2

1

5

6

3

8

9
4

10

CHARTER OAK DR

S IN
TERSTA

TE 35

S G
ENERAL B

RUCE D
R

PARKSIDE DR

CRYER LN

D
U

ST
Y 

LN

S IN
TERSTA

TE 35

Z-FY-14-37 Aerial Map 5105 Charter Oak Dr.

¬«1

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

μ
1234

1234-A

1

Case

Lot Number

0 350 700

Feet

9/5/2014
City of Temple GIS
mbaker





S IN
TERSTA

TE 35

CHARTER OAK DR

S G
ENERAL B

RUCE D
R

PA
RK

SI
DE

 D
R

CRYER LN

DUSTY LN

S IN
TERSTA

TE 35

μ

Z-FY-14-37 Future Land Use Map 5105 Charter Oak Dr.

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation

Estate Residential

Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial

Suburban Commercial

Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District

Industrial

Business Park

Public Institutional

Parks & Open Space

Agricultural/Rural

010020050
Feet

8/18/2014
City of Temple GIS



Localized Area of the Thoroughfare Plan 

 

Map Legend (Map not to scale) 

 



Localized Area of the Trails Plan 

 

Map Legend (Map not to scale) 

 



G

G

GG

G

G

18"

8"

36"

30
"

12"

8"

8"

18
"

CHARTER OAK DR

CRYER LN

PARKSIDE DR
S IN

TERSTA
TE 35

S G
ENERAL B

RUCE D
R

D
U

ST
Y 

LN

Z-FY-14-37 Utility Map 5105 Charter Oak Dr.

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

μ
Case

G Fire Hydrant

Sewer Line

Water Line

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major Arterial

Proposed K-TUTS

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor Arterial

Collector

Conceptual Collector

0 300 600150

Feet 8/18/2014
City of Temple GIS





LI

UE

GR

GR

GR

SF-1

MH
AG SF-1

SF-1

SF-1

LI

SF-1

Block: 

Block:1

Block:6

Block:3Block:4

Block:5

Block:7

Block:2

1

2
5

6
3

8
9

4

10

486-F

486-F

486-I

496-A
496-D

496-B
496-C

495-C

493-A
492-A

490-A

489-D
489-B

488-A500-A

500-A

502-B
502-A

504-A

503-A
506-B

486-E

487-A

487-H

487-K

501-A
495-B

489-A

487-A

505-B

487-G

501-A

500-B

500-A

489A-D

489B-D

501-2G

501-2A
501-6B

501-1E

501-1A

501-1H
501-1F

500C-A

500C-A

1119A-A

S IN
TERSTA

TE 35

CHARTER OAK DR

S G
ENERAL B

RUCE D
R

PARKSIDE DR

S IN
TERSTA

TE 35

7068

5105

5105

7095

7355

6710

5417

7700 7455 7365

7085

7654

5702

7560

5011

4601

7454

5110

7376

7910

5502

4917

5610

5005

6655

5009

8110

4905

7501

5020

4820

48254520

5019

7565

4820

5511

4748

4901

49235702

7202

7311

6753

5301

7401

5012
6815

4910 4905

4919

4915

5314

4916

7115

4911

7318

5010

7125

5018

5015

7501

4711

6607

7501

7201

5302

5320

48034820

7455

Z-FY-14-37 Notification Map
UE  to SF-1

5105 Charter Oak Dr.

¬«1

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

μ
1234

1234-A

1

Case

200' Buffer

Zoning

Subdivision

Outblock Number Block Number

Lot Number

0 350 700

Feet

9/5/2014
City of Temple GIS
mbaker













 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4688 

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-37) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM URBAN ESTATE 
DISTRICT (UE) TO SINGLE FAMILY-ONE DISTRICT (SF-1) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 61.137 ACRES, BEING A TRACT OF LAND IN THE 
NANCY CHANCE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, BELL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, AND LOCATED AT 5105 CHARTER OAK DRIVE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a zoning change from Urban Estate District 

(UE) to Single Family-One District (SF-1) on approximately 61.137 acres, being a tract 
of land in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract Number 5, Bell County, Texas, and 
located at 5105 Charter Oak Drive, as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit 
‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by 
the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 

this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 6th day 

of November, 2014. 

1 
 



 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 20th day of November, 2014. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 



   

 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
11/06/14 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT/DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: O-FY-15-01 – Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an Appeal of 
Standards in Section 6.8.of the Unified Development Code for the 1st and 3rd Overlay District related 
to landscaping, sidewalks and impervious cover for the expansion of an existing car dealership at 
1001 and 1003 S. 1st Street. 
 
The applicant has requested an appeal to the following 1st and 3rd Overlay standards: 

1. Sec. 6.8.4.A.1. Impervious Cover: 
o 70 percent for non-residential uses 

 Applicant is proposing 92 percent for the existing car lot and its expansion 
2. Sec. 6.8.6.C. Public Frontage Landscape Standards (Type A public frontage): 

o Location of trees and planting strip 
 Trees to be located in planting strip between back-of-curb and sidewalk 

o One-gallon container shrubs from the approved list are required every 3 feet along S. 1st 
Street 
 Applicant would plant approved shrubs every 5 feet along Avenue J 

o River rock is required within planting strip 
 Applicant prefers to keep existing grass 

3. Sec. 6.8.6.E. Public Frontage Sidewalk Standards 
o 8-foot sidewalk required from back-of-curb 

 Replace existing 4-foot sidewalk in current location to allow for preservation of 2 
existing 18-inch pecan trees between sidewalk and curb 

4. Sec. 6.8.8.C. Private Property Landscape Standards 
o Minimum of 30% landscape area at 1 tree and 4 shrubs per 600 sq ft 

 Applicant proposes a 690 square foot (8% of lot) landscape bed consisting of a 
3-inch red oak, mulch and river rock 

5. Sec. 6.8.9.F.6. Landscape Maintenance 
o Permanent irrigation is required 

 Applicant proposes to hand water trees and shrubs 
6. Sec. 6.8.12.E.4. Fence and Wall Standards 

o Fences and walls on the primary and secondary frontage may have a maximum height 
of 4 feet 
 Applicant proposes a 5-foot tall wrought-iron fence on the west and north sides 

 
 



11/06/14 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  This case will be presented at the 
November 3, 2014 P&Z meeting to accommodate the applicant’s timeline for closing on the property. 
Their recommendation will be presented to City Council by staff at the November 6, 2014 meeting. 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the appeal per the submitted plans 
and attachments. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The 1st and 3rd Overlay District was adopted in 2012 to primarily improve the 
streetscape, fencing and landscaping within these commercial corridors.  However, this is the first 
appeal requested from the standards since their adoption.  The applicant owns the existing “First 
Street Auto Tex” used car dealership at the southeast corner of S. 1st Street and Avenue J.  The 1st 
and 3rd Street standards were triggered by a paving permit submitted to expand the existing car 
dealership to the vacant lot to the south.  Staff has been working with the applicant to provide the 
following improvements that would 1) address the intent of the Overlay by improving the Avenue J 
and S. 1st Street frontage, while 2) still allowing the applicant to maximize his 75-foot x 100-foot lot 
space as a car lot: 

1. Remove existing chain-link fence and replace with a 5-foot wrought-iron along the Avenue J
and the S. 1st Street sides of the existing car lot while also extending the new fence along the
S. 1st Street frontage of the new addition to the car dealership

a. The existing chain-link fence could remain by Code, but the applicant has agreed to
replace it with fencing that complies with the Overlay standards

2. Replace the existing 4-foot sidewalk that is in complete disrepair, which would also allow for
the preservation of two 18-inch pecan trees 

3. Plant three new 3-inch red oak trees along S. 1st Street and one near the existing office
a. The existing broken sidewalk could remain by Code, but the applicant has agreed to

replace it
4. Install a new 6-foot wood privacy fence with steel posts along the rear of the property and

adjacent to the existing house immediately to the south
a. A wood privacy fence currently exists at that location but is in disrepair, therefore, the

applicant would like to replace it
5. Plant estimated 18 drought-tolerant shrubs on the approved 1st and 3rd Overlay list every five

feet along Avenue J
6. Provide a new 690 square foot planting bed adjacent to the office for a new 3-inch red oak

tree, mulch and river rock
Considering that a new 8-foot sidewalk and landscaping was recently installed on the west side of S. 
1st Street, staff believes that the 4-foot sidewalk and all of the improvements proposed for the project 
would significantly enhance this section of the S. 1st Street corridor.  The property is zoned GR 
(General Retail), which allows a car lot by right. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Proposed Site Plan  
Photos 
Zoning Map 
1st and 3rd Overlay Map
Resolution 





Lo
ok

in
g 

N
or

th
: E

xi
st

in
g 

Si
de

w
al

k 
an

d 
Pe

ca
n 

Tr
ee

s



Ex
ist

in
g 

Va
ca

nt
 L

ot
 a

t 1
00

3 
S.

 1
st

St
re

et



Lo
ok

in
g 

N
or

th
: E

xi
st

in
g 

Si
de

w
al

k



Ex
ist

in
g 

U
se

d 
Ca

r L
ot

 a
nd

 S
ig

n



Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ro

ug
ht

-Ir
on

 F
en

ce



Ex
ist

in
g 

Ch
ai

n 
Li

nk
 F

en
ce



Lo
ok

in
g 

N
or

th
: E

xi
st

in
g 

Si
de

w
al

k



Lo
ok

in
g 

So
ut

h:
 E

xi
st

in
g 

Si
de

w
al

k



Lo
ok

in
g 

Ea
st

: A
ve

nu
e 

J



Ex
ist

in
g 

Si
gn



Lo
ok

in
g 

N
or

th
: A

lle
y 

to
 th

e 
Re

ar

Su
bj

ec
t P

ro
pe

rt
y



1001-1003 S. 1st Street Zoning

Page 1 of 11001-1003 S. 1st Street Zoning

10/24/2014http://maps.ci.temple.tx.us:8080/aspnet_client/ESRI/WebADF/PrintTaskLayoutTemplate...



AArticle 6: Special Purpose and Overlay Zoning Districts 
Sec. 6.8. 1st and 3rd Overlay District 

Temple, Texas Unified Development Code
02/06/14

6-96

       North Section:                  South Section

[Ord. No. 2014-4631] 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7538-R 

[PLANNING NO. O-FY-15-01] 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING AN APPEAL OF STANDARDS IN SECTION 6.8 OF THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE RELATED TO THE 1ST AND 3RD OVERLAY 
DISTRICT RELATED TO LANDSCAPING, SIDEWALKS AND IMPERVIOUS 
COVER FOR THE EXPANSION OF AN EXISITNG CAR DEALERSHIP AT 1001 
AND 1003 SOUTH 1ST STREET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the 1st and 3rd Overlay District was adopted in 2012 to primarily improve the 
streetscape, fencing and landscaping within these commercial corridors - this is the first appeal 
requested from the standards since their adoption; 

Whereas, the applicant owns the existing “First Street Auto Tex” used car dealership at the 
southeast corner of South 1st Street and Avenue J and the 1st and 3rd Street standards were triggered 
by a paving permit submitted to expand the existing car dealership to the vacant lot to the south; 

Whereas, at their November 3, 2014 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended the appeal of standards of Section 6.8 of the Unified Development Code related to the 
1st and 3rd Overlay District related to landscaping, sidewalks and impervious cover for the expansion 
of an existing car dealership at 1001 and 1003 South 1st Street; 

Whereas, staff recommends approval of the appeals shown on Exhibit ‘A’- Site Plan located 
at 1001 and 1003 South 1st Street; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
approve this action. 

  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS,
THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes an appeal of standards of Section 6.8 of the Unified 
Development Code related to the following 1st and 3rd Overlay District requirements: 

1. Sec. 6.8.4.A.1. Impervious Cover:
o 70 percent for non-residential uses

 Applicant is proposing 92 percent for the existing car lot and its
expansion

2. Sec. 6.8.6.C. Public Frontage Landscape Standards (Type A public frontage):
o Location of trees and planting strip

 Trees to be located in planting strip between back-of-curb and sidewalk
o One-gallon container shrubs from the approved list are required every 3 feet

along S. 1st Street
 Applicant would plant approved shrubs every 5 feet along Avenue J

1 



 
 

o River rock is required within planting strip 
 Applicant prefers to keep existing grass 

3. Sec. 6.8.6.E. Public Frontage Sidewalk Standards 
o 8-foot sidewalk required from back-of-curb 

 Replace existing 4-foot sidewalk in current location to allow for  
 preservation of 2 existing 18-inch pecan trees between sidewalk and  
 curb 

4. Sec. 6.8.8.C. Private Property Landscape Standards 
o Minimum of 30% landscape area at 1 tree and 4 shrubs per 600 sq ft 

 Applicant proposes a 690 square foot (8% of lot) landscape bed  
 consisting of a 3-inch red oak, mulch and river rock 

5. Sec. 6.8.9.F.6. Landscape Maintenance 
o Permanent irrigation is required 

 Applicant proposes to hand water trees and shrubs 
6. Sec. 6.8.12.E.4. Fence and Wall Standards 

o Fences and walls on the primary and secondary frontage may have a maximum  
 height of 4 feet 

 Applicant proposes a 5-foot tall wrought-iron fence on the west and  
 north sides 

 
Part 2:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution 

is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of 
said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of November, 2014. 

  
        THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
  
               
        DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 


	Traci L. Barnard, Director of Finance
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Chapter 380 Agreement with Temple Economic Development Corporation (TEDC) for conveyance to TEDC of an approximately 39 acre parcel of City-owned land located off of Range Road.
	11/06/14
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 7
	11/06/14
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 7
	11/06/14
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	Page 3 of 7
	11/06/14
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	Page 4 of 7
	UCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:U The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan:
	11/06/14
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	Page 5 of 7
	The property has frontage along Charter Oak Drive. The Thoroughfare Plan (see attached) identifies Charter Oak Drive as a proposed minor arterial.
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	Page 7 of 7
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	Item #7
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 2
	UDEPT/DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	Brian Chandler, Director of Planning
	Item #7
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 2
	Artco-Bell Nominating Ordinance.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4691

	Artco-Bell Nominating Ordinance.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4691




